
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
If any disabled person needs any type of accommodation, please notify 

Central Yavapai Fire District at (928) 772-7711 prior to the scheduled meeting time. 
Page 1 of 2 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Central Yavapai Fire District 
Board of Directors and the general public that the Central Yavapai Fire District will hold a meeting open to the 
public on Tuesday, June 21, 2016 at 2:00 p.m. The meeting will be held at Chino Valley Fire District, 
Administration Classroom, 1133 W. Road 3 North, Chino Valley, Arizona. The Board may vote to go into 
Executive Session on any agenda item, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) for discussion and consultation 
for legal advice with the District’s Attorney on matters as set forth in the agenda item. The following topics 
and any variables thereto, will be subject to Board consideration, discussion, approval, or other action. All 
items are set for possible action. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Prescott Valley Town Council Report 
B. The Compass 

. 
4. PUBLIC HEARING FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 BUDGET 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE AMENDMENTS 
 
6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

Those wishing to address the Central Yavapai Fire District Board need not request permission in advance. 
The Fire District Board is not permitted to discuss or take action on any item raised in the Call to the Public 
due to restrictions of the Open Meeting Law; however, individual Board members may be permitted to 
respond to criticism directed to them. Otherwise, the Board may direct the staff to review the matter or the 
matter may be placed on a future agenda. 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Central Yavapai Fire 
District Board and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If 
discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered 
separately for discussion and possible action. 

 
A. Approve Regular Session Minutes of May 17, 2016 
B. Approve Executive Session Minutes of May 17, 2016 
C. Approve General Fund Financial Statements 
D. Approve Bond Debt Service Financial Statements 
E. Approve Intergovernmental Agreement for Apparatus Maintenance with Yavapai College 

 
8. CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Letters from the Public 
B. Monthly Division Reports from the Fire Chief and staff in regard to current activities of the Fire 

District and the status and progress relating thereto 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Discussion and Possible Action Related to Training Center Drainage Issues 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approve Resolution 2016-06 and Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Final Budget 
B. Approve Fiscal Certification Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget 
C. Approve Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Bond Repayment Tax Rate 
D. Discussion and Possible Approval of Capital Reserve Fund Transfer to CAFMA in the Amount of 

$6,508,697.35 to be Completed Prior to June 30, 2016 
E. Approve 2012 International Fire Code Amendments and Resolution 2016-05 
F. Approve J615 Investigation Policy; Approve Policy Amendments Effective July 1, 2016 New Joint 

Policy J407 Retirement and Deferred Compensation Benefits, New Joint Policy J408 Insurance and 



~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
If any disabled person needs any type of accommodation, please notify 

Central Yavapai Fire District at (928) 772-7711 prior to the scheduled meeting time. 
Page 2 of 2 

Related Benefits 
G. Discussion Regarding Emanuel Pines Camp and Road Access 
H. Discussion and Possible Approval to Open Escrow for the Purchase of 54,750 square feet, a Portion 

of APN 103-60-001A, as described in the attached Preliminary Site Plan, in the Amount of 
$98,812.50 

 
11. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

A. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) and Instruction to District Legal Counsel Pursuant 
to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(4) Re: Training Center Drainage 

 
12. OLD BUSINESS CONTINUED 
 

A. Discussion and Possible Action Related to Training Center Drainage Issues Discussed in Executive 
Session 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve Consent Agenda items A through E 
  
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 



 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT 
FIRE BOARD 

REGULAR SESSION 
 

May17, 2016 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS 
 

Board Chairman Rutherford called the Central Yavapai Fire District (CYFD) Fire Board 
meeting to order on Tuesday, May 17, 2016 at 2:01 p.m. at the Town of Prescott Valley, 
Library Auditorium, 7401 E. Civic Circle, Prescott Valley, Arizona. 
 
Members Present: Board Chairman Steve Rutherford, Board Clerk Bob Page, Board 

Members Darlene Packard, and Tom Steele 
 
Members Absent:  Board Member ViciLee Jacobs  
 
Staff: Fire Chief Scott Freitag, Assistant Chief of Administration Dave 

Tharp, Administrative Assistant III Laura Mowrer 
 
Others in Attendance: Attorney Nick Cornelius 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman Rutherford led the recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Prescott Valley Town Council Report 

 
No report given. 
 

4. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Chairman Rutherford opened the meeting for public comments. 
 
Attorney Christopher Jensen presented the Board of Directors with a petition regarding a 
possible fire danger at Emmanuel Pines Camp and an electronic copy of 523 signatures. 
He asked that this topic be placed on the June 21, 2016 Board agenda for discussion. He is 
requesting governmental action by CYFD Board and ultimately by the Yavapai County 
Board of Supervisors. He stated that the Emanuel Pines Camp uses Spence Springs Road 
for access which is only 16’ feet wide and is in violation of the current fire code. He 
explained that the camp is now expanding its uses and has increased traffic. He is asking 
for the District to evaluate the situation and issue a resolution stating that the area of 

Page 4 of 220



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 2 
 

Emmanuel Pines Camp is at risk for fire danger due to its location and lack of emergency 
access. He believes there should be no expansion of the uses of the camp causing 
increased traffic on Spence Springs Road until the road has been widened or a secondary 
road is built.   
 
Chairman Rutherford asked Staff to research for fire code issues and place the item on the 
June agenda.  
 
Jeff Wasowicz stated that he had a chicken coup fire, and was very thankful to the crew for 
doing a fantastic job containing the fire. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Central 
Yavapai Fire District Board and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate 
discussion on these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and will be considered separately for discussion and possible action. 
 
A. Approve April 6, 2016 Special Session Minutes of Central Yavapai Fire District, Chino 

Valley Fire District, and Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Board Meeting 
B. Approve Regular Session Minutes of April 19, 2016 
C. Approve Executive Session Minutes of April 19, 2016 
D. Approve General Fund Financial Statements 
E. Approve Bond Debt Service Financial Statements 
F. Discuss and Approve Cooperative Intergovernmental Agreement with Arizona State 

Forestry Division 
 

Board Clerk Page made a motion to approve Items A through C on consent agenda. 
Board Member Steele seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 

 
AYES: Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS: None 
 
Board Clerk Page amended the motion to include A through F. Board Member Steele 
seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED (This clarification was made due to an 
oversight in viewing the incorrect agenda in the board meeting software.) 
 
AYES: Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS: None 
 

6. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
A. Letters from the Public 

 
Board Chairman Rutherford mentioned there were several thank you notes. Chief 
Freitag talk about a medical call in which the Station 51 crew arrived about 7 minutes 

Page 5 of 220



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 3 
 

prior to AMR, and the patient went into cardiac arrest. The patient was transported to 
the hospital and later came to the station and thanked the crew for saving their life. He 
explained that we have had two recent cardiac arrest incidents where crews have been 
able to revive the patients. Chairman Rutherford also mentioned that the patient had to 
be carried down three flights of outside stairs.  
 

B. Monthly Division Reports from the Fire Chief and staff in regard to current activities of 
the Fire District and the status and progress relating thereto 
 
Chief Freitag Senate Bill 1244 passed with an emergency clause, and the Governor 
signed it into law. This bill provides for wildland prompt pay. It allows fire districts to 
maintain their fire district assistance tax (FDAT) when merging or consolidating. It also 
provides a one-time override provision that can be used November 2016 or November 
2017 to increase their maximum tax rate by $.25. 
 
Chief Freitag mentioned that we remain on track for the Fire Authority for July 1, and we 
are preparing to run a mock payroll for CAFMA.  
 
Chairman Rutherford congratulated Finance Manager Spingola for being the Chair of 
the Administrative Section of Arizona Fire District Association (AFDA). 
 
Board Member Packard thanked Chief Freitag for the time he has spent in Phoenix 
working on legislative issues.  
 
Chief Tharp explained that we are working on contract negotiations and employee 
benefit change overs.  
 
Chief Freitag mentioned that Chief Bliss is on wildland assignment with an engine and 
two other personnel near the Texas and New Mexico border.  
 

7. OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Discussion and Possible Action Related to Training Center Drainage Issues 

 
Attorney Cornelius mentioned that there were detailed plans drawn up for this project. 
Several of the principals wanted to receive outside estimates. The original estimate was 
$220,000. We have received an additional quote of $233,000. We expect to receive two 
more estimates. There is an upcoming court date. We plan to file a status memo with 
the court to explain the situation and to seek direction from the court. Further discussion 
to be held in Executive Session. 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Discussion and Possible Approval of Resolution 201604 for Purchase of Real Estate at 

8603 Eastridge Drive, Prescott Valley, Parcel 10305009P 

Page 6 of 220



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 4 
 

 
Chief Freitag mentioned that the Board approved the purchase of this property; 
however, the title company is requiring a resolution from the Board of Directors. We 
went through the due diligence process and had a building inspector, a civil engineer, 
two roofers, and an asphalt company look at the property. The civil engineer and 
building inspector found a small issue with the compaction under the asphalt at the back 
of the lot. The roof is also due for some maintenance. We were able to obtain a $30,000 
credit toward the purchase of the property for these repairs. We are prepared to close 
on the property on May 18, 2016. We just need to resolution for the title company to 
formalizing that the Board is in agreement. 
 
Board Chairman Rutherford stated that the process is progressing quickly, because the 
seller has an existing lease that expires in December. Therefore, he needed to move 
forward to either sell the property or sign another lease. Chairman Rutherford reiterated 
that he has no connection with this building or owner. He only sold the lot in 2003 or 
2004. 
 
Chief Freitag also mentioned that he found the building and senior staff discussed this 
property before presenting it to Chairman Rutherford and subsequently presented the 
idea to the Board for consideration. 
 
Board Member Steele asked about the roof. Chief Freitag mentioned that the building 
has a foam roof system that does not have seams which could leak. There are a few 
areas where the birds have chipped into the foam. The initial repairs of sealing these 
areas will be completed in July, and then we will purchase some owl statues and 
streamers to deter the birds. Once the construction is complete with moving the heating 
and cooling system, the regular maintenance will be performed. Board Member Steele 
confirmed that the roof is white and allows for more efficient cooling. 
 
Attorney Cornelius stated that he had contact with individuals voicing concerns 
regarding this purchase. All payments are coming from CYFD and upon approval from 
CAFMA's Board the second payment will be made from CAFMA. He has seen nothing 
improper with any of the documents or the due diligence process. He consulted in detail 
with Chief Tharp and the purchase is in compliance with Arizona Revised Statutes. The 
resolution specifically states that the Board has reviewed the financials, and we have 
had several open Board meetings to allow for opportunity for public comments.  
 
Board Chairman Rutherford read Resolution 2016-04 into the record. 
 
Board Chairman Rutherford mentioned the date should be the 17th day of May 2016. 
 
Board Clerk Page made a motion to approve the amended resolution. Board 
Member Packard seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES: Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 

Page 7 of 220



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 5 
 

NAYS: None 
 
Chief Freitag mentioned that there is no intention of cancelling the current lease. If the 
tenants should find something in advance of December 31, we may consider a 30-day 
notice without requiring they buy out the lease. 
 
Board Chairman Rutherford stated the property should close on schedule. 
 

B. Discussion and Possible Approval of Lease Purchase Agreement and Professional 
Services Addendum with Motorola for Portable Radios 
 
Chief Freitag asked that this item be removed from the agenda so some items can be 
worked out between legal counsel and Motorola.  
 
Attorney Cornelius mentioned that this might be a time sensitive contract. We may be 
asking the Board for a special meeting as there may be a substantial savings. 
 

C. Discussion and Possible Approval of Tentative Fiscal Year 20162017 Budget 
 
Chief Freitag explained that there were some changes in the budget from April to today 
with the purchase of the administrative building, and the Board was presented with a 
modified comparative budget. 
 
Chief Freitag explained that there was a $23,000 increase for PRCC due to staffing. 
The other item changed was the contract negotiation for Fire Chief’s contract. 
 
Chief Tharp stated that staff is asking for approval of the Central Yavapai tentative 
budget. He mentioned that the $1.7 mil purchase and renovation is included along with 
costs of Chief Freitag’s contract. The election and PRCC costs have been updated. The 
Central Yavapai Fire District tentative budget cannot be increased once it is approved. 
The total Central Yavapai budget is $14,552,730. The Fire Authority budget is provided 
for a detailed reference. 
 
Board Member Steele confirmed that the expense for the administrative building 
buildout is included. Chief Tharp stated that savings is being used to fund this project; 
therefore, the tax rate is not being impacted.  
 
Board Chairman Rutherford agreed that it is appropriate to place the administrative 
building purchase in the Central Yavapai budget.  
 
Chief Tharp mentioned that when we started considering creating CAFMA we were 
estimating at tax rate of $2.68 over the next four to five years prior to it leveling off. The 
new projected maximum tax rate with the creation of CAFMA is $2.59. The current 
2016-2017 Budget tax rate is just under $2.52. We are still projecting a few years of 

Page 8 of 220



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 6 
 

increased tax rate, but this is part of the fiscal plan. Due to the Fire Authority, the tax 
rate will not increase as much as we had anticipated, and it will start reducing sooner.  
 
Board Member Steele mentioned the new engine that was just placed into service.  
 
Chief Tharp stated that the new engine costs about $400,000 with vehicle and 
equipment costs. 
 
Chief Freitag commended the agency for controlling costs of the engines. He explained 
that the last organization he was employed with purchased four engines in one 
purchase in 2006 in hopes to reduce costs. They paid $499,950 per Type 1 engine. 
Now in 2016 CYFD is paying near $400,000. He mentioned that there are tight controls 
with our Fleet Manager, and we utilize a purchasing agreement with Houston-Galveston 
Area Council (HGAC) that saves us money. Additionally, we have a process that allows 
us to extend the life of these engines coupled with our maintenance program. The 
agency has done a very good job of controlling costs.  
 
Board Member Steele made a motion to approve the Tentative Fiscal Year 2016-
2017 Budget in the amount of $14,552,730. Board Clerk Page seconded the 
motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES: Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS: None 
 

D. Approve Amendment to Joint Policy J121 Policy Committee, Approve Amendments and 
Conversion to Joint Policies for J241 Temporary Appointment, J403 Leave Benefits 
 
Chief Freitag explained that some of these are just updates; J403 Leave Benefits is 
extensive. The Temporary Appointment was amended to simplify the process. Policy 
J121 Policy Committee had minor changes. 
 
Board Member Steele confirmed that all District members have reviewed these policies.  
 
Board Member Packard made a motion to approve amendments to Joint Policy 
J121, Joint Policy J241, and Joint Policy J403. Board Clerk Page seconded the 
motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES: Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS: None 
 

E. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Board Meeting Times 
 
Chief Freitag stated that as of the July Board meeting the majority of information will be 
presented at the CAFMA meeting. Central Yavapai's meeting will still consist of some 
financial items and the drainage issue. The June meeting will be even longer for 

Page 9 of 220



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 7 
 

CAFMA. He explained that Chino Valley Board Chair has a conflict with time of the 
Tuesday meetings. The Board may want to schedule the Central and Chino meetings 
for 30 minutes and the CAFMA meeting for one to two hours. He mentioned that the 
Town of Prescott Valley facility is available on Tuesdays. 
 
Chairman Rutherford suggested starting the Central Yavapai meetings at 4:00 p.m., 
CAFMA at 4:30 p.m., and Chino Valley at 6:00 p.m. to assist Chair Ducote. 
 

9. VOTE TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
A. Legal Advice Pursuant to A.R.S. §38431.03(A)(3) and Instruction to District Legal 

Counsel Pursuant to A.R.S. §38431.03(A)(4) Re: Training Center Drainage 
 
Board Clerk Page made a motion to go into Executive Session. Board Member Steele 
seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES: Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS: None 
 

Board Chairman Rutherford recessed the public meeting to go into Executive Session at 3:07 
p.m. 
 
Board Clerk Page made a motion to reconvene in Open Session. Board Member Steele 
seconded the motion. MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES: Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS: None 
 
Board Chairman Rutherford reconvened the Open Session at 3:27 p.m. 
 

10. OLD BUSINESS CONTINUED 
 
A. Discussion and Possible Action Related to Training Center Drainage Issues Discussed 

in Executive Session 
 
Chairman Rutherford directed Attorney Cornelius to move forward as discussed in 
Executive Session. 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Board Member Packard made a motion to adjourn. Board Clerk Page seconded the motion. 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
AYES: Packard, Page, Rutherford, Steele 
NAYS: None 

Page 10 of 220



Central Yavapai Fire District 
Regular Session – May 17, 2016 

Page 8 
 

 
Board Chairman Rutherford adjourned the meeting at 3:28 p.m. 

 
 
   
 Date 
 
   
 Bob Page, Board Clerk 

Page 11 of 220



































P:\Administration\Finance\Financials\FYE 06-30-16\Rev Exp Graphs\Rev Exp Graphs 2016-5-31.xlsx\Rev Data

CYFD 
Revenue

Current YTD
Month Revenue Budget

Real Estate Tax 404,680$         13,018,632$    76.21
Personal
Prop Tax 11,872$           265,686$         2.24
FDAT 51,376$           313,900$         9.68
Fire Protection Cont. -$                 65,000$           0.00
Fleet Mtc 1,288$             46,056$           0.24
Training Center 995$                36,100$           0.19
Fire Prevention 1,900$             69,300$           0.36
Tech Services 15,944$           163,000$         3.00
Grants -$                 165,810$         0.00
W/H Purch Group 35,527$           50,000$           6.69
Interest Income 1,147$             15,000$           0.22
Other Income 6,257$             76,400$           1.18

530,987$         14,284,884$    100.00 



Real Estate Tax 
76.20% 

Personal 
Prop Tax 

2.24% 

FDAT 
9.68% 

Fire Protection Cont. 
0.00% 

Fleet Mtc 
0.24% 

Training Center 
0.01% 

Fire Prevention 
0.36% Tech Services 

3.00% 

Grants 
0.00% 

W/H Purch Group 
6.69% 

Interest Income 
0.22% 

Other Income 
1.18% 

Real Estate Tax

Personal
Prop Tax
FDAT

Fire Protection
Cont.
Fleet Mtc

Training Center

Fire Prevention

Tech Services

Grants

W/H Purch Group

Interest Income

Other Income

            CYFD   
FY 2015 - 2016 

General Fund Revenue 
For the Period Ending 5/31/16 



P:\Administration\Finance\Financials\FYE 06-30-16\Rev Exp Graphs\Rev Exp Graphs 2016-5-31.xlsx\Exp Data

CYFD
Expenses

Current Month  
Actual YTD Budget

Personnel 851,733$             12,106,556$        41.40     
Supplies 103,536$             1,319,683$          5.03       
Services 62,423$               1,224,561$          3.03       
Capital Outlay 1,039,830$          1,352,308$          50.54     

2,057,522$          16,003,108$        100        



Personnel  
41.40% 

Supplies 
5.03% 

Services 
3.03% 

Capital Outlay 
50.54% 

Personnel

Supplies

Services

Capital Outlay

            CYFD   
FY 2015 - 2016 

General Fund Expenditures 
For the Period Ending 5/31/16 

 



FY 04-05 FY 05-06 FY 06-07 FY 07-08 FY 08-09 FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 11-12 FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 15-16

Total Levy $6,913,768 $8,081,850 $9,436,030 $11,846,174 $13,463,373 $13,408,327 $13,409,077 $12,030,906 $11,565,704 $11,463,180 $12,355,859 $13,284,318

Month Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected

July $90,827 $96,915 $83,783 $87,156 $110,039 $132,171 $160,816 $97,118 $98,218 $49,130 $52,496 $78,757

% 1.8561% 1.9390% 1.1706% 1.3917% 0.8173% 0.986% 1.199% 0.807% 0.849% 0.429% 0.425% 0.593%

% To Date 1.8561% 1.9390% 1.1706% 1.3917% 0.8173% 0.9857% 1.1993% 0.8072% 0.8492% 0.4286% 0.4249% 0.5929%

August $19,394 $33,539 $29,902 $29,493 $43,363 $54,230 $67,211 $67,725 $53,505 $31,390 $16,334 $33,291

% 0.8204% 0.4024% 0.3082% 0.3634% 0.3221% 0.404% 0.501% 0.563% 0.463% 0.274% 0.132% 0.251%

% To Date 2.6765% 2.3414% 1.4788% 1.7551% 1.1394% 1.3902% 1.7005% 1.3702% 1.3118% 0.7024% 0.5571% 0.8435%

September $539,210 $70,431 $177,924 $43,626 $107,451 $54,153 $117,450 $77,250 $838,823 $648,107 $1,095,501 $1,245,953

% 0.6101% 1.9306% 3.9653% 0.4126% 0.7981% 0.404% 0.876% 0.642% 7.253% 5.654% 8.866% 9.379%

% To Date 3.2866% 4.2720% 5.4441% 2.1677% 1.9375% 1.7941% 2.5764% 2.0123% 8.5645% 6.3562% 9.4233% 10.2226%

October $1,927,176 $2,875,353 $3,215,840 $4,532,443 $5,218,751 $4,889,830 $4,830,888 $3,857,770 $4,051,242 $3,652,128 $4,537,288 $4,753,774

% 29.4660% 34.7343% 32.5873% 37.6731% 38.763% 36.469% 36.027% 32.065% 35.028% 31.860% 36.722% 35.785%

% To Date 32.7526% 39.0064% 38.0313% 39.8408% 40.7001% 38.2627% 38.6034% 34.0777% 43.5926% 38.2159% 46.1451% 46.0074%

November $1,286,650 $1,314,493 $1,569,999 $1,445,614 $1,464,437 $1,810,813 $1,771,286 $2,173,940 $1,136,001 $1,662,046 $776,001 $1,053,509

% 23.1259% 17.1466% 17.5005% 16.1786% 10.877% 13.505% 13.210% 18.070% 9.822% 14.499% 6.280% 7.930%

% To Date 55.8785% 56.1530% 55.5318% 56.0194% 51.5773% 51.7678% 51.8130% 52.1474% 53.4147% 52.7149% 52.4255% 53.9379%

December $196,952 $436,441 $487,646 $518,402 $653,937 $804,068 $703,572 $598,094 $657,523 $682,390 $822,849 $847,617

% 2.8328% 2.8396% 2.8162% 3.2900% 4.8572% 5.9968% 5.2470% 4.9713% 5.6851% 5.9529% 6.6596% 6.3806%

% To Date 58.7113% 58.9926% 58.3480% 59.3094% 56.4344% 57.7646% 57.0600% 57.1187% 59.0998% 58.6678% 59.0851% 60.3185%

January $144,098 $182,929 $233,164 $418,982 $429,557 $418,693 $440,523 $471,527 $316,971 $345,369 $323,603 $302,609

% 2.5007% 2.0818% 1.4652% 1.4671% 3.1906% 3.1226% 3.2853% 3.9193% 2.7406% 3.0129% 2.6190% 2.2779%

% To Date 61.2120% 61.0744% 59.8132% 60.7765% 59.6250% 60.8872% 60.3453% 61.0380% 61.8405% 61.6806% 61.7041% 62.5964%

February $97,852 $263,264 $278,975 $364,994 $418,260 $491,337 $579,652 $452,569 $404,624 $354,364 $337,873 $351,342

% 2.5771% 1.7459% 1.8239% 1.6772% 3.1067% 3.6644% 4.3228% 3.7617% 3.4985% 3.0913% 2.7345% 2.6448%

% To Date 63.7891% 62.8203% 61.6371% 62.4537% 62.7317% 64.5516% 64.6681% 64.7997% 65.3389% 64.7719% 64.4386% 65.2412%

March $154,631 $371,324 $361,669 $535,404 $589,848 $622,420 $585,713 $469,035 $388,803 $444,942 $486,368 $526,700

% 2.2141% 2.0772% 2.2658% 2.2945% 4.3811% 4.6420% 4.3680% 3.8986% 3.3617% 3.8815% 3.9363% 3.9648%

% To Date 66.0032% 64.8975% 63.9029% 64.7482% 67.1128% 69.1937% 69.0361% 68.6983% 68.7006% 68.6534% 68.3749% 69.2061%

April $1,458,917 $1,771,951 $2,150,211 $2,612,277 $3,055,585 $3,015,293 $3,016,004 $2,866,023 $2,744,532 $2,658,334 $3,204,400 $3,444,316

% 21.1757% 18.1462% 21.9855% 18.9281% 22.6955% 22.4882% 22.4923% 23.8222% 23.7299% 23.1902% 25.9343% 25.9277%

% To Date 87.1789% 83.0437% 85.8884% 83.6763% 89.8083% 91.6819% 91.5284% 92.5205% 92.4305% 91.8436% 94.3092% 95.1337%

May $831,445 $488,790 $577,825 $793,414 $879,374 $916,959 $947,777 $798,148 $740,157 $716,914 $380,081 $416,552

% 11.3797% 14.9929% 10.8976% 14.6802% 6.5316% 6.8387% 7.0682% 6.6341% 6.3996% 6.2541% 3.0761% 3.1357%

% To Date 98.5586% 98.0365% 96.7860% 98.3565% 96.3399% 98.5206% 98.5966% 99.1546% 98.8301% 98.0977% 97.3853% 98.2694%

June $114,278 $116,499 $159,436 $136,155 $145,703 $170,884 $174,933 $177,193 $161,596 $161,606 $181,986 $0

% 0.9877% 1.7911% 2.0166% 1.3217% 1.0822% 1.2745% 1.3046% 1.4728% 1.3972% 1.4098% 1.4729% 0.0000%

% To Date 99.5463% 99.8277% 98.8026% 99.6782% 97.4221% 99.7951% 99.9012% 100.6274% 100.2273% 99.5075% 98.8582% 98.2694%

TOTALS $6,310,280 $7,110,845 $8,354,861 $10,038,188 $13,116,306 $13,380,852 $13,395,823 $12,106,390 $11,591,996 $11,406,720 $12,214,780 $13,054,420

Delinquency 0.4537% 0.1723% 1.1974% 0.3218% 2.5779% 0.2049% 0.0988% -0.6274% -0.2273% 0.4925% 1.1418% 1.7306%

Central Yavapai Fire District

General Fund Tax Collection Information



FY 04-05 FY 05-06 FY 06-07 FY 07-08 FY 08-09 FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 11-12 FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 15-16

Total Levy $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $338,000 $309,352 $313,900 $313,900

Month Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected Collected

July $4,703 $4,168 $2,975 $2,464 $1,301 $3,143 $3,697 $2,595 $3,064 $1,979 $1,836 $2,501

% 2.1203% -0.8239% 5.0433% 2.0287% 0.4338% 1.048% 1.232% 0.865% 0.907% 0.640% 0.585% 0.797%

% To Date 2.1203% -0.8239% 5.0433% 2.0287% 0.4338% 1.0476% 1.2324% 0.8651% 0.9066% 0.6398% 0.5848% 0.7966%

August $1,604 $1,731 $1,333 $1,258 $1,226 $1,248 $1,915 $1,736 $1,536 $902 $823 $1,456

% 1.0461% 0.6483% 0.4096% 0.4382% 0.4085% 0.416% 0.638% 0.579% 0.455% 0.291% 0.262% 0.464%

% To Date 3.1664% -0.1756% 5.4529% 2.4669% 0.8423% 1.4636% 1.8709% 1.4439% 1.3611% 0.9312% 0.8471% 1.2606%

September $21,474 $1,724 $2,051 $868 $1,745 $1,257 $2,388 $1,448 $19,621 $15,016 $25,478 $26,332

% 0.5869% 0.9866% 0.0000% 0.3293% 0.582% 0.419% 0.796% 0.483% 5.805% 4.854% 8.117% 8.389%

% To Date 3.7533% 0.8109% 5.4529% 2.7962% 1.4240% 1.8825% 2.6670% 1.9266% 7.1662% 5.7853% 8.9637% 9.6492%

October $82,848 $96,135 $102,106 $97,685 $101,806 $99,555 $96,016 $93,006 $101,218 $95,055 $78,715 $97,909

% 28.7499% 29.9224% 26.7685% 33.8371% 33.9354% 33.185% 32.005% 31.002% 29.946% 30.727% 25.076% 31.191%

% To Date 32.5032% 30.7333% 32.2214% 36.6333% 35.3594% 35.0674% 34.6725% 32.9286% 37.1125% 36.5125% 34.0402% 40.8405%

November $62,790 $59,803 $55,973 $56,540 $50,916 $52,928 $50,646 $59,997 $53,327 $50,582 $58,108 $43,410

% 26.5042% 22.8299% 24.3841% 20.2237% 16.9722% 17.6426% 16.8819% 19.9989% 15.7772% 16.3508% 18.5116% 13.8292%

% To Date 59.0074% 53.5633% 56.6055% 56.8570% 52.3315% 52.7100% 51.5544% 52.9274% 52.8897% 52.8633% 52.5518% 54.6697%

December $8,615 $18,356 $14,523 $14,149 $14,552 $17,550 $19,555 $15,865 $18,751 $17,866 $19,303 $20,201

% 2.6880% 3.1634% 3.0781% 3.4052% 4.8505% 5.8501% 6.5184% 5.2883% 5.5476% 5.7753% 6.1494% 6.4354%

% To Date 61.6954% 56.7267% 59.6835% 60.2621% 57.1821% 58.5602% 58.0728% 58.2157% 58.4373% 58.6386% 58.7012% 61.1051%

January $8,021 $9,532 $9,359 $12,416 $11,850 $12,187 $11,920 $12,904 $12,073 $20,052 $11,243 $10,565

% 3.2227% 2.4080% 2.3099% 2.0084% 3.9501% 4.0624% 3.9733% 4.3013% 3.5719% 6.4819% 3.5817% 3.3658%

% To Date 64.9180% 59.1347% 61.9934% 62.2705% 61.1321% 62.6225% 62.0461% 62.5170% 62.0092% 65.1205% 62.2829% 64.4709%

February $4,527 $7,787 $9,793 $10,562 $9,794 $11,387 $10,332 $10,894 $11,450 $8,863 $7,979 $7,946

% 2.8210% 1.9308% 1.8404% 2.4433% 3.265% 3.796% 3.444% 3.631% 3.388% 2.865% 2.542% 2.531%

% To Date 67.7390% 61.0655% 63.8338% 64.7138% 64.3968% 66.4183% 65.4902% 66.1482% 65.3968% 67.9857% 64.8248% 67.0023%

March $5,620 $16,226 $12,337 $12,305 $12,699 $13,595 $14,808 $12,280 $11,003 $10,149 $12,656 $12,018

% 2.2914% 1.4983% 1.9114% 2.0156% 4.2329% 4.5315% 4.9361% 4.0932% 3.2554% 3.2808% 4.0319% 3.8284%

% To Date 70.0304% 62.5638% 65.7452% 66.7294% 68.6297% 70.9498% 70.4262% 70.2414% 68.6522% 71.2665% 68.8567% 70.8307%

April $51,786 $45,356 $45,679 $33,339 $39,613 $55,561 $57,997 $43,738 $56,579 $58,042 $65,056 $35,416

% 17.9575% 14.3693% 16.6549% 17.3709% 13.2045% 18.5203% 19.3324% 14.5794% 16.7394% 18.7624% 20.7249% 11.2825%

% To Date 87.9878% 76.9331% 82.4001% 84.1002% 81.8342% 89.4701% 89.7587% 84.8208% 85.3916% 90.0289% 89.5816% 82.1132%

May $43,885 $34,199 $37,793 $50,251 $44,834 $31,295 $25,244 $44,155 $43,984 $31,386 $22,095 $51,376

% 13.5009% 18.7327% 15.3767% 15.0484% 14.9446% 10.4317% 8.4146% 14.7184% 13.0130% 10.1458% 7.0389% 16.3671%

% To Date 101.4887% 95.6658% 97.7768% 99.1487% 96.7788% 99.9019% 98.1733% 99.5391% 98.4046% 100.1747% 96.6206% 98.4803%

June $4,629 $3,699 $4,194 $3,396 $3,537 $3,134 $4,100 $4,540 $5,694 $4,028 $4,150 $0

% 0.9351% 1.7492% 1.8785% 1.4651% 1.1790% 1.0447% 1.3665% 1.5132% 1.6847% 1.3019% 1.3221% 0.0000%

% To Date 102.4238% 97.4149% 99.6553% 100.6138% 97.9578% 100.9465% 99.5398% 101.0524% 100.0894% 101.4767% 97.9427% 98.4803%

TOTALS $307,271 $292,245 $298,966 $301,841 $293,873 $302,840 $298,619 $303,157 $338,302 $313,920 $307,442 $309,130

Delinquency -2.4238% 2.5851% 0.3447% -0.6138% 2.0422% -0.9465% 0.4602% -1.0524% -0.0894% -1.4767% 2.0573% 1.5197%

Central Yavapai Fire District

FDAT  Collection Information



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June

78,756          33,292          1,245,953    4,753,774    1,053,509    847,617       302,609       351,342       526,699           3,444,316       416,552         1,107,027      

19,284          1,872            387               614               -                406               1,564            320               (87)                    -                   -                  5,417              

2,501            1,456            26,332          97,909          43,410          20,201          10,565          7,946            12,018             35,416            51,376            26,158            

20,797          15,119          12,142          6,228            33,738          25,781          3,452            129,293       60,950             24,695            20,127            27,446            

1,140            9,564            225               193               1,073            883               11,651          246               3,901               2,139               1,147              1,250              

-                -                -                114,275       -                -                -                -                -                    218,580          -                  13,818            

46,801          14,142          29,367          20,480          24,900          74,999          12,216          27,999          156,509           457,300          41,785            107,625         

169,279       75,446          1,314,406    4,993,474    1,156,630    969,887       342,057       517,147       759,990           4,182,446       530,987         1,111,721      

1,063,149    901,844       1,110,027    1,486,756    637,512       835,722       949,515       1,003,670    1,188,756        968,007          851,733         976,256         

49,385          49,724          90,463          191,514       71,621          98,338          91,393          206,304       135,448           116,499          103,536         121,217         

13,644          14,635          11,663          20,911          9,210            13,738          10,352          30,282          15,153             28,990            11,957            14,902            

80,256          63,478          41,997          196,240       24,059          72,686          50,843          129,643       102,111           31,624            50,466            88,891            

-                7,498            -                98,694          878               45,442          (1,880)          244,756       41,216             52,095            1,039,830      83,031            

1,167,510    1,037,179    1,254,150    1,284,297    743,280       1,065,926    1,100,223    1,614,655    1,482,684        1,197,215       2,057,522      1,284,297      

(998,231)      (961,733)      60,256          3,709,177    413,350       (96,039)        (758,166)      (1,097,509)   (722,694)          2,985,231       (1,526,535)     (172,576)        

(775,702)      (1,737,435)   (1,677,179)   2,031,998    2,445,348    2,349,309    1,591,143    493,634       (229,059)          2,756,171       1,229,636      1,057,060      

222,529       (739,204)      (678,948)      3,030,229    3,443,579    3,347,540    2,589,374    1,491,865    769,172           3,754,402       2,227,867      

8,147,545    6,153,943    6,154,149    6,154,312    6,155,189    6,155,663    6,164,233    6,503,993    6,506,495        6,507,894       6,508,697      

Cash Balance        

($1.2 M carryover)
Capital Reserve

$6,508,697.35

Misc. Service Expenses

Capital Expenses

ExpenditureTotals:

Monthly Net Cash

Cumulative Net Cash

RevenueTotals:

Expenditures:

Personnel Costs

Supplies/ Consum.

Utilites

Fire ProtectionContracts

FDAT

Fee for Service

Interest Income

Grants

Misc. Non Levy

2015 - 2016 Cash Flow by Month : June Board Meeting

Actual Projected

Revenues:

Property Taxes































Central Yavapai Fire District Fiscal Year

Capital Projects Fund 2015-16

GL #1200

Date Transaction Debit Credit Balance

07/01/15 Fiscal Year Beginning Balance $8,145,587.34

07/31/15 Interest $1,957.29 $8,147,544.63

08/31/15 Interest $6,398.76 $8,153,943.39

08/31/15 Temp Transfer to General Fund $2,000,000.00 $6,153,943.39

09/30/15 Interest $205.31 $6,154,148.70

10/31/15 Interest $163.18 $6,154,311.88

11/30/15 Interest $877.22 $6,155,189.10

12/31/15 Interest $474.17 $6,155,663.27

01/31/16 Interest $8,569.86 $6,164,233.13

02/18/16 Transfer FY 15 excess funds from General Fund $339,618.83 $6,503,851.96

02/29/16 Interest $141.06 $6,503,993.02

03/31/16 Interest $2,502.38 $6,506,495.40

04/30/16 Interest $1,399.07 $6,507,894.47

05/31/16 Interest $802.88 $6,508,697.35

P:\Administration\Finance\Budget\Capital Asset Schedule\CAPITAL RESERVE FUND.XLS































P
a
g
e
 1

3
4
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

3
5
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

3
6
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

3
7
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

3
8
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

3
9
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

4
0
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

4
1
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

4
2
 o

f 
2
2
0



Crew Members:  

Acting Captain Bushman 

Engineer Kontz 

Firefighter Corbiere 
 

 
From: Jeff Spence  

Sent: Wednesday, May 04, 2016 5:31 PM 
To: Scott Freitag 

Subject: Thank you! 
  

Dear Chief Freitag: 

  

Please accept our thanks and extend them to the firefighters who visited with us today around 

1705.  We had a snake in our front courtyard which we could not correctly identify and your 

guys showed up very quickly upon our calling PVPD and handled the situation.  This included a 

quick education for a couple of recent eastern transfers about what is and is not dangerous.  Your 

fire officers were friendly, informative, and very helpful.  We thanked them for their service to 

the community while they were here and we want to extend that thanks to you and the whole 

department. 

  

We recognize that all the uniformed services put it on the line for all of us every day and we 

want you to know how much we appreciate it! 

  

Sincerely yours, 

  

The Rev. Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey B. Spence 

Prescott Valley, AZ 86314 

  

Page 143 of 220



P
a
g
e
 1

4
4
 o

f 
2
2
0



Station 58 A Shift
Captain Pruitt
Engineer Huddleston
Firefighter McCarty

P
a
g
e
 1

4
5
 o

f 2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

4
6
 o

f 2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

4
7
 o

f 
2
2
0



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 1  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Chief’s Report 
By Fire Chief Freitag 
 
As of this board meeting we are less than two weeks away from the official start of Central Arizona Fire and 
Medical Authority. It would be a gross understatement to say everyone is working fast and furious to wrap up 
our processes. As to be expected, we hit an occasional road bump that takes a little more time, but we have 
been able to overcome. I would be remiss if I did not recognize our amazing staff for their tireless efforts to pull 
this together. Chief Tharp, his managers and staff have done yeomen’s work with the IGA’s, contracts, finance, 
payroll, and human resource files/processes that had to be updated.  
 
Pioneer Title is finalizing all documentation required for the transfer of real property to CAFMA, with the 
exception of the training facility. As you recall, the training facility is currently a part of the ACE drainage suit 
and cannot be transferred until the suit is resolved. All rolling stock has been transferred through the license 
bureau and will be official July 1st.  
 
Signs at the stations and on the apparatus have been slowly changing over. I do not have a definitive date for 
completion, but should be by August. All uniforms have been issued, so as of 0800 July 1st all employees will be 
required to wear the CAFMA branded uniforms. No CVFD or CYFD uniforms are allowed after that date. Chief 
Bliss and his staff have done a tremendous amount of work to ensure everything in Planning and Logistics 
remains on track.  
 
Policies and SOG’s remain a work in progress however we have been able to update those deemed priority 1 
and 2 on time. While this is an accomplishment, Policies and SOG’s will remain manuals that are under constant 
review. We will have the updated manuals for the CAFMA board at the July meeting. Until then, we will 
continue working under the joint policies which will be converted to CAFMA. We are grateful to Operations 
Chief Polacek and his personnel for all of their efforts during this transition.   
 
The Strategic Planning committee has completed their work for next fiscal year and will present the completed 
document at the meeting on June 21st. We feel the document is comprehensive and holds true to our Mission, 
Vision and Values as set forth in the Compass. The Strategic plan will be before the CAFMA board only for 
approval; however it is available to all board members. Our committee was comprised of both internal and 
external stake holders and should reflect the communities we serve.  
 
I have negotiated with Fain group on a piece of property in back of Stoneridge at the end of Old Black Canyon 
Highway just as the black top ends on the North side of the road. The CYFD board had approved the purchase of 
the property as part of this fiscal year’s budget for the purposes of a future fire station. Mr. Ron Fain and I have 
tentatively agreed to a purchase price, pending board approval, well below our budgeted amount. We did have 
an engineer design a layout on the property utilizing Station 50 as a foot print to ensure we purchased the right 
amount of dirt for our needs. The layout is included with the purchase agreement in the CYFD and CAFMA 
board packets. If approved, we will open escrow as CYFD and close as CAFMA.  
 
The Chino Bond has closed and monies deposited. Domenic will begin working with the truck committee after 
the first of the fiscal year to spec the new Type 1 and 3 engines to be purchased for Battalion 6 with bond 
proceeds.  
 

Page 148 of 220



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 2  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

We continue to meet with the labor group monthly. They have been very helpful in moving CAFMA forward and 
continue to be committed to our success.  
 
The City of Prescott has approved their tentative budget. They have continued to fund current staffing and 
hope for approval of their SAFER Grant. This means that it is unlikely we will see any additional station closures. 
Additionally, we have just completed a joint written test for new firefighters. Prescott has been approved to 
hire for three vacancies which will aid in decreasing their brownout issues. We also have three immediate 
openings and will hire once our process is complete. The openings are not related to the positions lost in B6. 
We will remain short those three positions until we can project sustainable revenues enough to replace them. 
The plan is to seek a SAFER Grant, possibly in fiscal 17/18.  
 
Per some requests from our last board meetings related to budgeting and PRCC, those that requested have 
been sent copies of the current agreements between Prescott and our organizations. Nick is reviewing the 
document as well, and we have been visiting with our partners about possible options related to the IGA going 
forward.  
  

Page 149 of 220



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 3  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Administration  
By Assistant Chief Tharp 
 
We are in the final push for completing the myriad of tasks in transitioning to CAFMA. For the vast majority of 
the issues, we are either complete or at 90%, however, we are still obtaining benefit forms, inputting 
information into our accounting and HR software program, and beta testing payroll. We are also working with 
Stephen Crandall to look at the end of the year accounting practices for the Chino Valley and Central Yavapai 
Fire Districts transitioning funds and accounts (Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable) to CAFMA. This 
process will obviously continue beyond July 1, but we are ensuring that we have a solid foundation for audit 
and accounting practices for the inaugural year of CAFMA.  
 
We have been notified that the Transwestern Pipeline has sought another lawsuit against the Department of 
Revenue for invalid assessment of its utility. If you remember, the last time this was brought forward, the State 
of Arizona lost the lawsuit and the CYFD had its levy reduced by over $46,000 in one year. The Yavapai County 
Attorney has given notice that there is another lawsuit for the 2016 Tax assessment and if supported, will result 
in another reduction of levy to the CYFD of just under $25,000. While the Yavapai County Attorney emphasizes 
that “the Department of Revenue is confident that its valuation is well supported”, they wanted to give us due 
notice that we may be facing a withholding of these valuable revenues.  
 
It was interesting to attend the last Arizona Fire Districts Association (AFDA) board meeting in Glendale. The 
conversation was far and above positive in relationship to the successful legislative year and positive impacts 
that it will have on fire districts. Those statutory changes include Fire District Assistance Tax (FDAT) reform -
allowing modification of FDAT to be cumulative for two (or more) merging or consolidating fire districts, 
“Prompt Pay” for Wildland reimbursement, and PSRPS reform of the current plan and future plan. One of the 
surprising notes was the $3.25 Tax Cap Override. While this issue was discussed as a stop gap (and a very short 
term solution) for Fire Districts to obtain a voter override of $3.50 for 5 years, many discussed that it still did 
not alleviate the long term strangle hold of the effects of Proposition 117. And in fact, there were two more 
organizations that stated they would be at the $3.25 cap this upcoming fiscal year. Superstition Fire and 
Medical, which has an annual budget of $12,688,576 is one of the two and they will be asking for the override 
in November. I point this out not to disparage Chief Bourgeois or that organization of 8 stations, but to bring to 
light that the revenue issues of fire districts is throughout the state and affects small fire districts and large fire 
districts. We discussed having a task force meeting with the Arizona Tax Research Association (ATRA) and other 
key players (Professional Firefighters Association) to discuss the funding limitations of fire districts.  
 
Finally, we met with Ashton Tiffany regarding the possible set up of the Worker’s Compensation Pool to be 
effective July 1st. With the short time frame and premium deviations that were given from CopperPoint, a few 
organizations felt that the July 1st date was too aggressive and did not provide enough time to educate the fire 
board members and other fire district organizations about this risk pool. All expressed their dedication to the 
future of the risk pool and a future date is July 1, 2017. This will provide additional time to educate, recruit 
organizations and set up the pool for a solid future. While some may see short term savings due to CopperPoint 
“buying” their loyalty for another year, we are looking for long term, sustainable, premium control and much 
better service. Ashton Tiffany guarantees those items and encourages us to discuss and research school districts 
across Arizona, because their risk pool 20 years ago is where the fire districts are today. We will keep you 
apprised of the progress.    

Page 150 of 220



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 4  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Fire Prevention 
By Fire Marshal Chase 
 
Construction: 

A second submittal of building plans for the Crossroads apartments were received.  These will be a 96 unit 
complex near the Kia Dealership and the Terraces on Glassford Hill. 

Plans were reviewed for a 248 unit storage facility to be located on 2.7 acres in the Dells. 

Little Dippers Ice Cream Shop opened up next to Arturo’s Mexican food on Hwy. 89 in Chino Valley. 

A to Z Home Center opened up on Hwy. 89 in the building where Hunts Building Center once occupied. 

A business called Select Automotive on Hwy 89 is under review with the Town of Chino Valley. 

Chik-Fil-A will be breaking ground soon in the Crossroads area at 5773 E. Hwy 69. 

Progress on Dutch Brothers Coffee at 5963 E. Hwy 69 is coming along. 

Earnhardt VW should be breaking ground soon at 5582 E. Market St. 

We just provided an underground inspection on La-Z-Boy at 5584 E. Hwy. 69. 

Bingham Tractor Supply should be breaking ground soon at 10123 E. Hwy. 69. 

We’re working with Oasis Church located at 200 Hideaway Ln. in upper blue hills on their fire pump that will be 
installed within the next couple of months.   

General: 

We have been providing annual inspections at the local camps in our area.  Most have had some minor 
violations that have been fixed in a timely manner. 

May 25th Board Member Packard and I attended the Prescott Valley Economic Development Foundation 
quarterly breakfast. 

Fire Inspector Dowdy and Firefighter Tom Muniz attended the fire inspector 2 class held in Flagstaff. 

We have been very busy over the past couple of months with defensible space property assessments.  

Fire Inspector Ayars participated in the “One less spark, one less wildfire” campaign held at Sunset Point on 
May 27th. 

Assistant Fire Marshal Smith has been working with the community of Dewey/Humboldt on their firewise 
efforts. 

I attended the National Fire Academy in Emmetsburg MD the first week of May; it was a great educational 
experience. 

Fire Inspector Dowdy participated in the Fire OPS 101 class and said it was a great experience. 

Page 151 of 220



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 5  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

Administrative Assistant Teresa Frawley has been an asset in the division and has been working with Chief Abel 
on CAFMA personnel certifications. 

Thank you to Chiefs Freitag and Tharp for attending the annual PV Team Up to Clean Up event and cooking hot 
dogs for the participants. 

As a reminder, burn permits are now valid for the calendar year that they are issued.  Several agencies have 
moved to the annual burn permits including CYFD, CVFD, PFD, Williamson Valley Fire District, Groom Creek Fire 
District and Walker Fire.  The preferred way to obtain a permit is online. 

I met with the Principals from Del Rio and Heritage Elementary Schools in Chino Valley regarding the Fire Pal 
program and both were excited to get his program in their schools. 

Events attended/requested by CAFMA: 

5/7 P.V. Team Up to Clean Up    Chiefs Freitag and Tharp 

5/14 Operation Kidsafe Free digital Fingerprinting Event Engine 51 

5/17 Field day water spray-Bradshaw Mtn Middle School Cancelled due to weather 

5/17 Field day water spray-Lake Valley Elementary School Cancelled due to weather 

5/18 Field day-water spray at Acorn Montessori  Engine 58 

5/24 Safety Week-Gods World    Engine 53 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Fire Prevention Activities 

208  Business Inspections 

10 Construction Inspections/Reviews 

22 Alarm/Sprinkler Testing and Plan Reviews 

3 Fire Investigations 

70 School Programs/Public Talks  

4 Preconstruction Meetings/Plan Reviews 

 f bl    

Page 152 of 220



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 6  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Operations 
By Assistant Chief Polacek 
 
Wild Land Fire Season is in full swing and we have sent personnel off district as Line Medics. Line medics are a 
two person Crew consisting of an EMT and a Paramedic with ALS gear  that respond with a pickup truck to 
provide care to any  Fire Fighter that gets injured on the fire line. Though we have not seen any large fires, we 
have sent line medics out for five fires around the state and one in West Texas. The area will be looking at 
entering in to Fire Restrictions if the weather remains hot and dry. 
  
We assisted PRCC with Dispatcher testing. They received 40 applications for six positions; ten candidates went 
to the interviews with 9 people passing the test. Those 9 candidates will move on to background checks to 
establish a hiring list for dispatchers at PRCC.  
 
We are also moving forward with the new Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD). The partners have researched three 
different CAD systems and have found that ADSI (the current CAD system) is outdated an antiquated. We are 
continuing to move forward with the research of a new system with no deadlines in place as of yet, though we 
are hopeful that a new system will be in place next year. PRCC is working with Yavapai County about entering 
into an IGA for Code Red. Code Red is an emergency alerting system that contacts people by their phone in the 
event of an emergency. Yavapai County utilizes Code Red and PRCC was using reverse 911 which will no longer 
be available. This will be a good partnership with the County because instead of having two individual systems 
we can rely on one for the area agencies. 
  
Personnel from Battalion 6 and Battalion 3 have been swapping stations and personnel. This has been working 
well and working out any bugs that we may have moving towards July 1 and CAFMA. It appears that we are on 
the right path to make a smooth transition into the new organization. 
 
 
  

Page 153 of 220



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 7  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Planning and Logistics 
By Assistant Chief Bliss 
 
The activities related to changing to CAFMA have continued.  Michael Freeman has moved all data into one 
version of FIREHOUSE which is the records management system that both departments have used for recording 
training, business inspections, and fire hydrant information.  Fleet has been transitioning the engine labeling to 
Central Arizona and has provided information to Administration for the title changes and the new rate 
agreement with State Forestry.   Tom reports that all of the station signs have been changed. 

Erik and I recently visited the Forest Service Cache at the airport that provides supplies for a large portion of the 
Southwest.  We are constantly looking for additional options to purchase fire related equipment and wanted to 
look into a government source for some of the wildland products.  In the past we were able to purchase 
through the General Services Administration (GSA) which was the government supply point for the Forest 
Service.  GSA discontinued their fire service products in 2014 which forced us to look for other vendors.  The 
Cache manager let us know that the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA) picked up the fire service procurement and 
is now an option for us to consider so we will be looking at that option.   

The regular station maintenance and warehouse activities continue as well as fleet maintenance.  The new 
Hazardous Materials Vehicle has arrived and work is being done to place it in service.   

 
  

Page 154 of 220



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 8  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Training 
By Training Chief Feddema 
 
As we approach July 1st, we continue to support the effort to standardize the two organizations under CAFMA. 
There are various policies and SOG’s that require adjustment to ensure they accurately reflect CAFMA 
operations. This is not only an excellent time to merge the two organizations but also an opportunity to review 
and scrutinize each policy and SOG. An example of an improvement to a policy and procedure has been the 
newly adjusted Training Nomination Form. The new form is still electronic; however, it was simplified to reduce 
some of the redundancies that were unnecessary in the original design. The new form will allow for the same 
approval process but it will be easier to complete and includes several new questions that will simplify the 
process to accurately account for the costs of training and travel. 

The Fire Ops program has held at CARTA May 20th and 21st. During this program we were able to bring in Dave 
Barrett of Barrett Propane to receive an appreciation award from CARTA. This award was in appreciation for his 
support in time and supplies to help build our vehicle fire training prop. With the partnership that we have been 
able to build with Barrett Propane, we will build this prop at 10% of the cost to purchase it from a 
manufacturer. We have been able to utilize the skills of our CARTA staff to accomplish this project and the Fire 
Ops program was an excellent way to publically express our appreciation for the work Barrett Propane has put 
into the project. Dave Barrett was also able to speak to the group on behalf of his participation in the Fire Ops 
program last year.  

We also held a training officer credentialing course that was sponsor by the ISFSI (International Society of Fire 
Service Instructors). This was a pilot program for the ISFSI and the contract for the course was approved by the 
Fire Board in April. The course attracted students from around Arizona and the southwest. CARTA was chosen 
by the ISFSI, which is based out of Centreville Virginia, to host the course in the southwest. This opportunity 
arose because of the CARTA facility and our participation with the ISFSI for other courses. The course focused 
on training officer development and we had 4 CAFMA Training Officers that attended the training.   

Training at CARTA slows down in the month of June because of the threat of wildland fires; however, work 
continues to be done to prepare for CAFMA and the fall training session. We continue to work on marketing 
courses and the recent Fire Ops program allowed for networking with other business professionals. The 
challenge has not been developing the training; the challenge has been developing quality training that fits 
within the productive time of an engine company. With many other required activities, we continue to look for 
innovative ways to accomplish our required training and development.       
 
 
 

  

Page 155 of 220



 
 
 
 

 

21 June 2016  Page | 9  

DIVISION REPORTS 
REPORTED TO THE 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI AND CHINO VALLEY FIRE DISTRICTS’  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Response Report 
By GIS | Records Management Specialist Freeman 

Land Area:  162 sq. miles     Population: 70,701     Fire Stations:  7 Staffed Stations 
 

   Responses in CYFD            Unit Responses 
                 In     Total 
     TOTAL FIRE           District Responses 

BLDG FIRE 1 E50 115 120 
BLDG CONTAINED 1 E51 32 146 
MOBILE HOME/PORTABLE BLDG 0 E53 168 169 
VEHICLE 1 E54 114 114 
BRUSH/GRASS 3 E57 42 48 
OTHER 1 E58 136 140 

Fire is 0.96% of call volume  E59 113 116 
TOTAL EMS 511 T50 1 1 

EMS is 70.19% of call volume 
 

OVERPRESSURE  0  

HAZMAT 10 

SERVICE 109 

GOOD INTENT 76 

FALSE ALARM/OTHER 15 
Other is 28.85% of call volume 

TOTAL # OF CALLS 728 
Residential Fire Loss $100,900  
Vehicle Fire Loss $1,000 

 474 EMS 
Calls in Town of Prescott Valley 468 57 Public Service 
Calls in Town of Dewey-Humboldt 37 46 Cancelled en Route 
Calls in rest of District 223 23 Assist Invalid 
Calls out of District 1 19 No Incident Found on Arrival 
    

Average total # of calls per day 23.48  Number of 
Avg fire calls per day 0.23 Station move-ups 
Avg EMS calls per day 16.48 50 62 
Avg all other calls per day 6.77 51 36 

  53 11 
Auto Aid Given 111 54 0 
Auto Aid Received 63 57 5 
Mutual Aid Given 0 58 3 
Mutual Aid Received 0 59 3 

  TOTAL 120 
 

  
    

  

   

   

   

   

Page 156 of 220



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE RESOLUTION 2016-06 AND FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 FINAL 

BUDGET 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve Resolution 2016-06 and Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Final Budget in the 
amount of $ 14,553,133. 
  
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 

Page 157 of 220



Fiscal Year 2017

Description Page #

Revenue 2

Expense 3

The Central Yavapai Fire District Board of Directors has approved

the posting and publication of the Fire District's Tentative Budget

for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 and will hold a Public Hearing to adopt

said budget on June 21, 2016 at the Station 61 meeting room, 

Rd. 3 North, Chino Valley, at 2:00 p.m.

Draft Budget  (April 2016)

Table of Contents

Page 158 of 220



Draft

Budget Budget Budget Budget

FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 FY 17 Variance Variance (%)

Total District Budget 17,053,442       16,132,327           16,735,644            14,553,133            (2,182,511)            -13.04%

Carryover (3,500,000)        (2,115,300)           (1,220,760)             -                     (1,220,760)            -100.00%

Revenue:

Vehicle Maintenance:

4315 Walker Fire (8,000)               (8,000)                  (8,000)                    -                     (8,000)                   -100.00%
4325 Mayer Fire (3,000)               (3,000)                  (5,000)                    -                     (5,000)                   -100.00%
4350 Chino Valley Fire (1,000)               (1,000)                  (21,306)                  -                     (21,306)                 -100.00%
4352 Clarkdale (4,000)               (4,000)                  (3,000)                    -                     (3,000)                   -100.00%
4360 Camp Verde Fire (1,000)               (1,000)                  (1,000)                    -                     (1,000)                   -100.00%
4365 Montezuma Rimrock (1,000)               (1,000)                  (1,000)                    -                     (1,000)                   -100.00%
4375 Forest Service (1,000)               (1,000)                  (1,000)                    -                     (1,000)                   -100.00%
4385 Rosenbauer/Central States (1,000)               (1,000)                  (3,000)                    -                     (3,000)                   -100.00%
4395 Crown King Fire (500)                  (500)                     (500)                       -                     (500)                      -100.00%
4600 Groom Creek Fire (500)                  (500)                     (500)                       -                     (500)                      -100.00%
4620 HME Maintenance -                -                   -                     -                     -                    -
4640 Williamson Valley Fire (750)                  (750)                     (750)                       -                     (750)                      -100.00%
4700 Other/Warranty (1,000)               (1,000)                  (1,000)                    -                     (1,000)                   -100.00%

Total Vehicle Maintenance (22,750)             (22,750)                (46,056)                  -                 -                     (46,056)                 -100.00%
-

Prevention:

4400 Plan Review Fees (4,500)               (4,500)                  (4,500)                    -                     (4,500)                   
4415 Care Home Inspection Fees (500)                  (500)                     (500)                       -                     (500)                      -100.00%
4420 Special Events Fees (10,500)             (17,500)                (17,500)                  -                     (17,500)                 
4425 Prevention Permits (200)                  (200)                     (200)                       -                     (200)                      -100.00%
4430 Inspection Fees (1,000)               (1,000)                  (1,000)                    -                     (1,000)                   -100.00%
4450 Urban Survival Sponsorships -                -                   -                     -                     -                    -
5105 CPR Class Income (6,000)               (6,000)                  (6,000)                    -                     (6,000)                   -100.00%

5125.31 Wildland  (PAWUIC) / Def. Space (15,000)             (15,000)                (15,000)                  -                     (15,000)                 -100.00%
5150 Risk Management Grants -                -                   -                     -                     -                    -
5500 Knox Box Reimbursements -                -                   -                     -                     -                    -
5600 Babysitting Class (600)                  (600)                     (600)                       -                     (600)                      -100.00%

Chino Valley Fire Contract (45,000)                (45,000)                  -                     0.00%
Total Prevention (38,300)             (90,300)                (90,300)                  -            -                     (45,300)                 -50.17%

Communications:

4775 Cell Tower Lease Agreements (38,000)             (38,000)                (38,000)                  (38,000)                  -                    0.00%
5140.41 Tech Services Contracting (125,000)           (125,000)              (125,000)                -                     (125,000)               -100.00%

Total Communications (163,000)           (163,000)              (163,000)                -                 (38,000)                  (125,000)               -76.69%

Grants:

5260 Fire Act Grant Generator/TIC's (136,000)           -                   -                     -                     -                    -
5410 Grant for Fire Training System -                -                   (20,000)                  -                     (20,000)                 -100.00%
5430 Grant - FEMA - SAFER -                (173,346)              (145,810)                (65,000)                  (80,810)                 -55.42%

Total Grants (136,000)           -                   (165,810)                -                 (65,000)                  (100,810)               -60.80%

Warehouse:

5700 Warehouse Purchasing Group -           (50,000)                (50,000)                  -                     (50,000)                 -100.00%

5900 Training Center Classes (23,300)             (30,000)                (30,000)                  -                     (30,000)                 -100.00%

4200 FDAT (309,352)           (313,900)              (313,900)                (313,900)                -                    0.00%

Other:

4000/4100 Real Estate Tax
4001 Fire Protection Contracts (65,000)             (65,000)                (65,000)                  -                     (65,000)                 -100.00%
1200 Capital Reserve Account (1,392,060)        (676,372)              (1,230,000)             (20,000)                  (1,210,000)            -98.37%
4800 Off-District Fires (50,000)             (50,000)                (50,000)                  -                     (50,000)                 -100.00%
4900 Interest Income (15,000)             (15,000)                (15,000)                  -                     (15,000)                 -100.00%
5100 Miscellaneous Income (10,900)             (10,900)                (10,900)                  -                     (10,900)                 -100.00%
5200 Surplus Vehicles -                -                   -                     -                     -                    -
5350 Paramedic Ride-In Charges (100)                  (100)                     (100)                       -                     (100)                      -100.00%
5400 Donations (500)                  (500)                     (500)                       -                     (500)                      -100.00%

Total Other (1,533,560)        (817,872)              (1,371,500)             -                 (20,000)                  (1,351,500)            -98.54%

Total Non-Levy Revenues (5,416,910)        (3,289,222)           (3,137,426)             -                 (123,000)                (3,014,426)            -96.08%

Tax Levy Requirement 11,327,180       12,529,205           13,284,318            14,116,233            831,915                6.26%

Net A.V.(4.8692% increase) 489,046,527     521,054,327         534,237,001          560,250,069          26,013,068           4.87%

Actual/Estimated Tax Rate $2.3440 $2.3713 $2.4866 $2.5196 $0.0330 1.33%

Central Yavapai Fire District

Revenue Budget FY 2017

Page 159 of 220



General Fund CAFMA Budget Budget

Budget Budget Budget Actual Budget Variance Variance

FY 14 FY 15 FY 16 - FY 17 $$ %

Retained Funds

6400.1 Audit &Accounting 14,000 14,000 2000 (12,000)               -85.71%
6405.1 Other Professional Services

Fire Board Election 20,500 -                  75,500                75,500                -
6410.1 Legal Services - Routine 73,000 73,000 5,000                  (68,000)               -93.15%
6441.1 Fire Board Expenses 950 950 1,000                  50                       5.26%

-                          -
-                          -

Total Retained Funds 108,450       87,950         83,500                (4,450)                 -5.06%

Contingency 720,458       732,538       20,000                (712,538)             -97.27%

Fire Authority Funding

6700.1 Fire Authority Funding -                   -                  14,449,633         14,449,633         -

Total Expense Budget 14,553,133         14,449,633         -

Central Yavapai Fire District

Draft Budget FY 2017 (6-2016)

Page 160 of 220



CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION 16-06 
 
A FORMAL RESOLUTION OF THE ELECTED BOARD OF THE CENTRAL 
YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT TO ADOPT THE FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET OF 
$14,553,133 TO ENCUMBER SUFFICIENT FUNDS TO COVER OUTSTANDING 
WARRANTS FROM THE PREVIOUS FISCAL YEAR, AND TO ENCUMBER ANY 
CARRYOVER AMOUNT EXCEEDING $0 TO BE TRANSFERRED TO THE 
CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY’S CAPITAL RESERVE 
FUND FOR FUTURE CAPITAL EXPENDITURES. 
 
 WHEREAS, Arizona Revised Statutes Title 48 requires the Central Yavapai Fire District 
to adopt an annual budget, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Central Yavapai Fire District has posted and published its proposed 
annual budget in compliance with State Law, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held on the proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Budget in 
compliance with State Law, and:  
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to encumber sufficient funds to cover outstanding warrants 
from the previous fiscal year, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Central Yavapai Fire District wishes to encumber any carryover amount 
exceeding $0 to transfer to the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority’s Capital Reserve 
Fund for future capital expenditures; 
 
 THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT THE CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE 
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS ADOPTS THE FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET OF 
$14,553,133 (ATTACHED) AND ENCUMBERS SUFFICIENT FUNDS TO COVER 
OUTSTANDING WARRANTS FROM THE PREVIOUS FISCAL YEAR, AND 
ENCUMBERS ANY CARRYOVER AMOUNT EXCEEDING $0 TO TRANSFER TO THE 
CENTRAL ARIZONA FIRE AND MEDICAL AUTHORITY’S CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 
FOR FUTURE CAPITAL EXPENDITURES. 
 
 RESOLVED and ADOPTED this 21st day of June, 2016. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Board Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Board Clerk    

Page 161 of 220



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE FISCAL CERTIFICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 

BUDGET 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve certification for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 

Page 162 of 220



P
a
g
e
 1

6
3
 o

f 
2
2
0



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 BOND REPAYMENT TAX RATE 
 
For the Fiscal Year 2016-2017, the Central Yavapai Fire District would like to levy 
$1,311,976 in bond tax revenues. The revenues would be applied to the Bond Debt 
Servicing for the GADA 2005(A) bond repayment obligation of $666,750, the 2008(B) 
bond repayment obligation of $471,650 and the 2013 bond repayment obligation of 
$253,576 for a total of $1,391,976. However, this bond debt obligation would be 
reduced by $80,000 due to retained Bond Debt Service Funds that are currently held in 
this account. The resulting levy requirement is $1,311,976 for a tax rate of $0.2341 
(reduction of $0.0156 from prior year).  
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve Fiscal Year 2016-2017Bond Tax Rate of $0.2341 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 

Page 164 of 220



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE CAPITAL RESERVE FUND TRANSFER TO CAFMA IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $6,508,697.35 TO BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO JUNE 30, 
2016 

 
“As discussed with the respective Central Yavapai and Chino Valley Fire District Board 
of Directors, the assets and liabilities will be transferred to the Central Arizona Fire and 
Medical Authority. As provided by ARS 48-805.01 and outlined in the Joint Powers 
Authority agreement Section III Paragraph E. and Section IV Paragraph A., the cash 
assets of the respective Districts would be transferred to the new fire authority. As of 
May 31st, 2016, the balance of the CYFD Capital Reserve Fund is $6,508,697.35 and 
the balance of the CVFD Capital Reserve Fund is $2,576,517.78. These cash assets 
need to be transferred to the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority prior to July 1, 
2016 to enable the fire authority to capitalize and continue organizations without using a 
line of credit from Yavapai County for warrants issued after the July 1st effective date.  
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve the transfer of $6,508,697.35 from the CYFD Capital Reserve Fund 
(account #6-60340-0000) to the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority Capital 
Reserve Fund (account #6-67340-2000) 
 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 

Page 165 of 220



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE AMENDMENTS AND 

RESOLUTION 2016-05 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve 2012 International Fire Code Amendments and Resolution 2016-05 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 

Page 166 of 220



P
a
g
e
 1

6
7
 o

f 
2
2
0



 
 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT 
2012 International Fire Code Amendments 

 
CHAPTER 1  

ADMINISTRATION 
 
Section 101.1 Title is amended as follows: 
These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of Central Yavapai Fire District, 
hereinafter referred to as “this code”. 
 
Section 105.6.2 Amusement building is amended as follows: 
Amusement building and events.  An operational permit is required for any 
amusement building or event. 
 
Section 105.6.23 Hot work operations is amended as follows: 
4. Hot work, including grinding, conducted within a wildfire risk area during burn 
restrictions. 
 
Section 108.2 Limitations of authority is amended by adding: 
Rulings by the Board of Appeals shall be binding upon the Fire District and the 
appellants.  All rulings made by the Board of Appeals shall be only for the appellant 
and shall not be intended as a general change in this Code. 
 
Section 109.4 Violation penalties is amended as follows: 
Persons who violate a provision of this code or fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof, or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or perform work in 
violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code official, 
or of a permit or certificate obtained under provisions of this Code, shall be found in 
violation and subject to penalties designated by the jurisdiction having authority. 
 
Section 111.4 Failure to comply is amended as follows: 
Any person who continues any work after having been served with a stop work 
order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation 
or unsafe condition, shall be found in violation and subject to penalties designated 
by the jurisdiction having authority. 

 
CHAPTER 5  

FIRE SERVICE FEATURES 
 
Section 505.1 Address identification is amended as follows: 
New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers, building numbers 
or building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the 
street or road fronting the property.  These numbers shall contrast with their 
background.  Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters.  
Numbers shall be a minimum of 6 inches high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 
inch.  Larger numbers may be required by the fire code official to facilitate 
emergency response. 
 

Page 213 of 220



 
 

Section 505.2.1 Conflicting road names is amended by adding a new section as 
follows: 
Newly assigned street or road names shall not conflict with existing names and shall 
be approved by the fire code official. 
 

CHAPTER 9 
FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 
Section 901.2 Construction documents is amended by adding the following: 
Automatic sprinkler system plans shall be submitted bearing a review certification 
and signature of a minimum level III NICET Certified Engineering Technician or 
Arizona registrant.  Fire sprinkler plans for high-piled combustible storage 
occupancies shall require a registered fire protection engineer stamp.  Fire alarm 
system plans shall be submitted bearing a review certification and signature of a 
minimum level III NICET Technician or Arizona registrant. 
 
Section 901.6.2 Records is amended to read as follows: 
Records of all system inspections, tests and maintenance required by the referenced 
standards shall be maintained on the premises for a minimum of three years and 
reports of system deficiencies shall be forwarded to the authority having jurisdiction 
within 10 business days. 
 
Section 903.2.1.1 Group A-1 is amended by changing items 1 and 2 to read as 
follows: 
1.  The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2.  The fire area has an occupant load of 100 or more. 
 
Section 903.2.1.3 Group A-3 is amended by changing items 1 and 2 to read as 
follows: 
1.  The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater.  
2.  The fire area has an occupant load of 100 or more. 
 
Section 903.2.1.4 Group A-4 is amended by changing item 1 to read as follows: 
1.  The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
 
Section 903.2.3 Group E is amended as follows: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for all Group E occupancies.  

Exception 1: A day care facility with less than 11 children in a private 
residence. 
Exception 2: In group E occupancies less than 5,000 s.f. where a municipal 
water supply is not available, if every classroom has at least one exterior exit 
door at ground level and an NFPA 72 compliant automatic fire alarm system 
installed throughout, fire sprinklers may be omitted if approved by the fire 
code official. 

 
Section 903.2.4 Group F-1 is amended as follows: 
Section 903.2.4 Group F An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided 
throughout all buildings containing Group F occupancies where one of the following 
conditions exists: 

1. The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 

Page 214 of 220



 
 

2. The fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 
3. A Group F occupancy used for the manufacture of upholstered furniture or 

mattresses exceeding 2,500 square feet. 
 

Section 903.2.6 Group I is amended by changing exceptions 3 and 4 to read as 
follows: 

3.  An automatic sprinkler system is not required where day care facilities are at 
the level of exit discharge, where every room where care is provided has a 
least one exterior exit door and where the fire area is less than 5,000 square 
feet. 

4. In buildings where Group I-4 day care is provided on levels other than the 
level of exit discharge, an automatic fire sprinkler system shall be installed 
through all levels of the building. 

 
Section 903.2.7 Group M is amended by changing items 1-3 to read as follows: 

1. The Group M fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The Group M fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 
3. The combined area of all Group M fire areas on all floors, including any 

mezzanines, exceeds 5,000 square feet. 
 
Section 903.2.7.1 High-piled storage is amended by adding: 
The automatic fire sprinkler system shall be designed by a fire protection engineer.   
 
Section 903.2.8 Group R is amended by adding exceptions 1 and 2 to read as 
follows: 
 Exception 1. Group R-3 one and two family dwellings, occupied as single 
family units, less than 5,000 square feet livable space unless more than two stories 
above grade. The calculated area shall include all livable and unfinished space, the 
area of any attached garage, and concealed or accessible spaces intended for 
storage use and/or future living space.  Perimeter decks or outdoor living space is 
not calculated in the 5,000 square feet threshold requirement. 
 Exception 2. Group R-3 care facilities within a dwelling unit for five or fewer 
persons. 
 
Section 903.2.9 Group S-1 is amended by changing Group S-1 to Group S and 
changing items 1, 2 and 3 to read as follows: 
Section 903.2.9 Group S 

1. The Group S fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The Group S fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 
3. The combined area of all Group S-1 fire areas on all floors, including any 

mezzanines, exceeds 5,000 square feet. 
 
Section 903.2.9.1 Repair Garages is amended by changing items 1 and 2 to read 
as follows: 

1. Buildings having two or more stories above grade plane, including 
basements, with a fire area containing a repair garage exceeding 5,000 
square feet.  

2. Buildings no more than one story above grade plane, with a fire area 
containing a repair garage exceeding 5,000 square feet. 

 

Page 215 of 220



 
 

Section 903.2.10 Group S-2 enclosed parking garages is amended by changing 
item 1 to read as follows: 

1. Where the fire area of the enclosed parking garage exceeds 5,000 square 
feet. 

 
Section 903.2.13 Group B is an added section: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings containing a 
Group B occupancy where one of the following conditions exists: 

1. Where a Group B fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. Where a Group B fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 

 
Section 903.2.14 Group U is an added section: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings containing a 
Group U occupancy 5,000 square feet or greater as determined by the fire code 
official.  
 
Section 903.3.1.1.1 Exempt Locations is amended by deleting item number 4. 
 
Section 903.3.1.3.1 Garages is amended by adding the following section: 
Sprinklers are required in all attached garages and workshops. 
 
Section 903.3.5 Water supplies is hereby amended by adding: 
The water data for hydraulic calculations shall be based upon 85 percent of the 
available water supply as determined by flow test information.  
 

CHAPTER 11 
CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING BUILDINGS 

 
Section 1103.5 Sprinkler systems is amended by adding the following 
subsections: 
 
Section 1103.5.3 Building Addition.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any addition increases the total floor area to 5,000 square feet or 
greater. 
 Exception:  R-3 Occupancies. 
 
Section 1103.5.4 Change of Use.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any change of use or occupancy occurs to a portion of the building to 
a more hazardous occupancy or as determined by the Fire Code Official.  
 
Section 1103.5.5 Group A-1, A-3, and A-4 Addition.  A sprinkler system is 
required throughout the building when any addition to existing assembly 
occupancies increases the occupant load to more than 100.  
 
Section 1103.5.6 Group A-2 Addition.  A sprinkler system is required throughout 
the building when any addition to existing assembly occupancies increases the 
occupant load to more than 100.  
 
Section 1103.5.7 Group E.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the building 
for Group E occupancies. 

Page 216 of 220



 
 

 Exception 1: Child day care facilities for more than five but no more than 10  
 children in a single-family residence. 

Exception 2: In group E occupancies less than 5,000 s.f. where a municipal 
water supply is not available; if every classroom has at least one exterior exit 
door at ground level and an NFPA 72 compliant automatic fire alarm system 
installed throughout, fire sprinklers may be omitted if approved by the fire 
code official. 

 
Section 1103.5.7 Group R-3 Care Facilities. A sprinkler system is required 
throughout the building in a single-family residence wherein six or more persons 
receive care. 
 
Section 1103.5.8 Vacant Buildings. A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any A, E, or I occupancy that has been vacant for more than 18 
months requests to resume as the same occupancy classification. 
 
Section 1103.5.9 Fire Wall Breech. A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any modification or alteration to an existing building, with a total floor 
area of 5,000 square feet or greater, breeches or removes a required fire rated wall 
assembly. 
 
Section 1103.7 Fire Alarm Systems is amended by adding the following 
subsections: 
Section 1103.7.8 Non-Monitored Sprinkler System.  A fire alarm system shall be 
installed throughout the building when an existing, non-monitored fire sprinkler 
system is modified by 20 or more sprinkler heads. 
 
Section 1103.7.9 Sprinkled Building Fire Alarm Requirement.  An approved fire 
alarm system shall be installed in existing buildings when a fire sprinkler system is 
provided.   

 
CHAPTER 56 

EXPLOSIVES AND FIREWORKS 
 
Section 5601.2.4 Financial Responsibility is amended as follows: 
Before a permit is issued, as required by Section 5601.2, the applicant shall file with 
the jurisdiction a corporate surety bond in the principal sum of $1,000,000 (one 
million dollars) or a public liability insurance policy for the same amount, for the 
purpose of the payment of all damages to persons or property which arise from, or 
are caused by, the conduct of any act authorized by the permit upon which any 
judicial judgment results.  The fire code official is authorized to specify a greater or 
lesser amount when, in his or her opinion, conditions at the location of use indicate a 
greater or lesser amount is required.  Government entities shall be exempt from this 
bond requirement. 
 
Section 5601.2.4.1 Blasting is amended as follows: 
Before approval to do blasting is issued, the applicant for approval shall file a bond 
or submit a certificate of insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 (one million dollars) 
in each case to indemnify the jurisdiction against any and all damages arising from 
permitted blasting. 

Page 217 of 220



 
 

 
Section 5601.2.4.2 Fireworks Display is amended as follows: 
Before approval for a display is issued, the permit holder shall furnish a bond or 
certificate of insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 (one million dollars) per 
occurrence for the payment of all potential damages to a person or persons or to 
property by reason of the permitted display, and arising from any acts of the permit 
holder, the agent, employees or subcontractors to indemnify the jurisdiction against 
any and all damages arising from permitted fireworks displays. 
 

CHAPTER 80 
REFERENCED STANDARDS 

Part VI-Referenced Standards is amended to add the following: 
Add the document known as Central Yavapai Fire District “Fire Protection 
Standards” for Builders, Developers, Engineers & Architects. 
 
 
APPENDIX A 
 
Section A101.2 Membership is amended as follows: 
The membership of the board shall consist of five voting members that have the 
qualifications established by this section and reside within the boundaries of the 
Central Yavapai Fire District.  In the event that it is not practical to find members as 
required by this section, the Fire Code official reserves the right to relax the 
qualifications as to create a valid professional board to serve this jurisdiction.  
Prospective members shall apply to the Fire Marshal of the jurisdiction, subject to 
confirmation by a majority vote of the Central Yavapai Fire District Fire Board.  
Members shall serve without remuneration or compensation, and shall be removed 
from office prior to the end of their appointed terms only for cause. 
 
Section A101.3 Terms of Office is deleted. 
 
Section A101.3.1 Initial Appointments is deleted. 
 
Section A101.5 Secretary of Board is amended as follows: 
The fire code official or his designee shall act as Secretary of the Board and shall 
keep a detailed record of all its proceedings, which shall set forth the reasons for its 
decisions, the vote of each member, the absence of a member, and any failure of a 
member to vote. 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

Table B105.1 Minimum Required Fire Flow and Flow Duration for Buildings is 
amended by adding Footnote c as follows: 
Footnote c: In special circumstances, where the municipal or rural water supply will 
not provide the required 1,500 gpm, the fire code official may accept a lesser 
amount.  This amount shall never be less than 1,000 gpm.  
 
APPENDIX D 
 
Section D103.2 Grade is amended as follows: 

Page 218 of 220



 
 

Fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 12 percent grade. 
The exception is deleted and replaced as follows: 
Exception:  The fire code official may permit the access road grade to increase, but 
shall not exceed 15 percent if fire sprinkler protection is installed. 
 
Section D103.3 Turning Radius is amended as follows: 
The minimum turning radius shall be 28’ (twenty-eight feet) inside and 50’ (fifty feet) 
outside diameter for all fire department access roads and parking lots. 
 

Page 219 of 220



Central Yavapai Fire District 
 

Resolution No. 16-05 
 

A FORMAL RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CENTRAL 
YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT AMENDING THE 2012 EDITION OF THE 
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE.  
  

WHEREAS, the Central Yavapai Fire District did, on or about, June 18, 2013, 
adopt the 2012 International Fire Code together with certain amendments thereto 
(IFC); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Central Yavapai Fire District is authorized, pursuant to A.R.S. 
48-805 (B)(6) to adopt a nationally recognized fire code and amend or revise the 
adopted code. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Central Yavapai Fire District wishes to amend the 2012 
Edition of the International Fire Code to provide for a more uniform practice and 
enforcement of the Fire Code, consistent and together with various other 
enforcement agencies with whom Central Yavapai Fire District may interact;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved as follows: 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED that the Central Yavapai Fire District hereby amends the 
2012 Edition of the International Fire Code (IFC), Chapter 9, Section 903.2.3 Group 
E, Exception 2; Chapter 11, Section 1103.5.7 Group E, Exception 2; Chapter 80 
Referenced Standards. 
 
 FUTHER RESOLVED, that if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this resolution is for any reason held to be unconstitutional; such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this resolution. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution and the rules, regulations, 
provisions, amendments, requirements, orders and matters established and adopted 
hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
approval. 
  
  
 
RESOLVED and ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 20_____. 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Board Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Board Clerk 

Page 220 of 220



  

1 
 

CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT 
2012 International Fire Code Amendments 

 
CHAPTER 1  

ADMINISTRATION 
 
Section 101.1 Title is amended as follows: 
These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of Central Yavapai Fire District, 
hereinafter referred to as “this code”. 
 
Section 105.6.2 Amusement building is amended as follows: 
Amusement building and events.  An operational permit is required for any 
amusement building or event. 
 
Section 105.6.23 Hot work operations is amended as follows: 
4. Hot work, including grinding, conducted within a wildfire risk area during burn 
restrictions. 
 
Section 108.2 Limitations of authority is amended by adding: 
Rulings by the Board of Appeals shall be binding upon the Fire District and the 
appellants.  All rulings made by the Board of Appeals shall be only for the appellant 
and shall not be intended as a general change in this Code. 
 
Section 109.4 Violation penalties is amended as follows: 
Persons who violate a provision of this code or fail to comply with any of the 
requirements thereof, or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or perform work in 
violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code official, 
or of a permit or certificate obtained under provisions of this Code, shall be found in 
violation and subject to penalties designated by the jurisdiction having authority. 
 
Section 111.4 Failure to comply is amended as follows: 
Any person who continues any work after having been served with a stop work 
order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation 
or unsafe condition, shall be found in violation and subject to penalties designated 
by the jurisdiction having authority. 

 
CHAPTER 5  

FIRE SERVICE FEATURES 
 
Section 505.1 Address identification is amended as follows: 
New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers, building numbers 
or building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the 
street or road fronting the property.  These numbers shall contrast with their 
background.  Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers or alphabetical letters.  
Numbers shall be a minimum of 6 inches high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 
inch.  Larger numbers may be required by the fire code official to facilitate 
emergency response. 
 

Page 168 of 220



  

2 
 

Section 505.2.1 Conflicting road names is amended by adding a new section as 
follows: 
Newly assigned street or road names shall not conflict with existing names and shall 
be approved by the fire code official. 
 

CHAPTER 9 
FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 
Section 901.2 Construction documents is amended by adding the following: 
Automatic sprinkler system plans shall be submitted bearing a review certification 
and signature of a minimum level III NICET Certified Engineering Technician or 
Arizona registrant.  Fire sprinkler plans for high-piled combustible storage 
occupancies shall require a registered fire protection engineer stamp.  Fire alarm 
system plans shall be submitted bearing a review certification and signature of a 
minimum level III NICET Technician or Arizona registrant. 
 
Section 901.6.2 Records is amended to read as follows: 
Records of all system inspections, tests and maintenance required by the referenced 
standards shall be maintained on the premises for a minimum of three years and 
reports of system deficiencies shall be forwarded to the authority having jurisdiction 
within 10 business days. 
 
Section 903.2.1.1 Group A-1 is amended by changing items 1 and 2 to read as 
follows: 
1.  The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2.  The fire area has an occupant load of 100 or more. 
 
Section 903.2.1.3 Group A-3 is amended by changing items 1 and 2 to read as 
follows: 
1.  The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater.  
2.  The fire area has an occupant load of 100 or more. 
 
Section 903.2.1.4 Group A-4 is amended by changing item 1 to read as follows: 
1.  The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
 
Section 903.2.3 Group E is amended as follows: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for all Group E occupancies.  

Exception 1: A day care facility with less than 11 children in a private 
residence. 
Exception 2: In group E occupancies less than 5,000 s.f. where a municipal 
water supply is not available, if every classroom has at least one exterior exit 
door at ground level and an NFPA 72 compliant automatic fire alarm system 
installed throughout, fire sprinklers may be omitted if approved by the fire 
code official. 

 
Section 903.2.4 Group F-1 is amended as follows: 
Section 903.2.4 Group F An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided 
throughout all buildings containing Group F occupancies where one of the following 
conditions exists: 

Page 169 of 220



  

3 
 

1. The fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 
3. A Group F occupancy used for the manufacture of upholstered furniture or 

mattresses exceeding 2,500 square feet. 
 

Section 903.2.6 Group I is amended by changing exceptions 3 and 4 to read as 
follows: 

3.  An automatic sprinkler system is not required where day care facilities are at 
the level of exit discharge, where every room where care is provided has a 
least one exterior exit door and where the fire area is less than 5,000 square 
feet. 

4. In buildings where Group I-4 day care is provided on levels other than the 
level of exit discharge, an automatic fire sprinkler system shall be installed 
through all levels of the building. 

 
Section 903.2.7 Group M is amended by changing items 1-3 to read as follows: 

1. The Group M fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The Group M fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 
3. The combined area of all Group M fire areas on all floors, including any 

mezzanines, exceeds 5,000 square feet. 
 
Section 903.2.7.1 High-piled storage is amended by adding: 
The automatic fire sprinkler system shall be designed by a fire protection engineer.   
 
Section 903.2.8 Group R is amended by adding exceptions 1 and 2 to read as 
follows: 
 Exception 1. Group R-3 one and two family dwellings, occupied as single 
family units, less than 5,000 square feet livable space unless more than two stories 
above grade. The calculated area shall include all livable and unfinished space, the 
area of any attached garage, and concealed or accessible spaces intended for 
storage use and/or future living space.  Perimeter decks or outdoor living space is 
not calculated in the 5,000 square feet threshold requirement. 
 Exception 2. Group R-3 care facilities within a dwelling unit for five or fewer 
persons. 
 
Section 903.2.9 Group S-1 is amended by changing Group S-1 to Group S and 
changing items 1, 2 and 3 to read as follows: 
Section 903.2.9 Group S 

1. The Group S fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. The Group S fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 
3. The combined area of all Group S-1 fire areas on all floors, including any 

mezzanines, exceeds 5,000 square feet. 
 
Section 903.2.9.1 Repair Garages is amended by changing items 1 and 2 to read 
as follows: 

1. Buildings having two or more stories above grade plane, including 
basements, with a fire area containing a repair garage exceeding 5,000 
square feet.  

Page 170 of 220



  

4 
 

2. Buildings no more than one story above grade plane, with a fire area 
containing a repair garage exceeding 5,000 square feet. 

 
Section 903.2.10 Group S-2 enclosed parking garages is amended by changing 
item 1 to read as follows: 

1. Where the fire area of the enclosed parking garage exceeds 5,000 square 
feet. 

 
Section 903.2.13 Group B is an added section: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings containing a 
Group B occupancy where one of the following conditions exists: 

1. Where a Group B fire area is 5,000 square feet or greater. 
2. Where a Group B fire area is located more than two stories above grade. 

 
Section 903.2.14 Group U is an added section: 
An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided throughout all buildings containing a 
Group U occupancy 5,000 square feet or greater as determined by the fire code 
official.  
 
Section 903.3.1.1.1 Exempt Locations is amended by deleting item number 4. 
 
Section 903.3.1.3.1 Garages is amended by adding the following section: 
Sprinklers are required in all attached garages and workshops. 
 
Section 903.3.5 Water supplies is hereby amended by adding: 
The water data for hydraulic calculations shall be based upon 85 percent of the 
available water supply as determined by flow test information.  
 

CHAPTER 11 
CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING BUILDINGS 

 
Section 1103.5 Sprinkler systems is amended by adding the following 
subsections: 
 
Section 1103.5.3 Building Addition.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any addition increases the total floor area to 5,000 square feet or 
greater. 
 Exception:  R-3 Occupancies. 
 
Section 1103.5.4 Change of Use.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any change of use or occupancy occurs to a portion of the building to 
a more hazardous occupancy or as determined by the Fire Code Official.  
 
Section 1103.5.5 Group A-1, A-3, and A-4 Addition.  A sprinkler system is 
required throughout the building when any addition to existing assembly 
occupancies increases the occupant load to more than 100.  
 

Page 171 of 220



  

5 
 

Section 1103.5.6 Group A-2 Addition.  A sprinkler system is required throughout 
the building when any addition to existing assembly occupancies increases the 
occupant load to more than 100.  
 
Section 1103.5.7 Group E.  A sprinkler system is required throughout the building 
for Group E occupancies. 
 Exception 1: Child day care facilities for more than five but no more than 10  
 children in a single-family residence. 

Exception 2: In group E occupancies less than 5,000 s.f. where a municipal 
water supply is not available; if every classroom has at least one exterior exit 
door at ground level and an NFPA 72 compliant automatic fire alarm system 
installed throughout, fire sprinklers may be omitted if approved by the fire 
code official. 

 
Section 1103.5.7 Group R-3 Care Facilities. A sprinkler system is required 
throughout the building in a single-family residence wherein six or more persons 
receive care. 
 
Section 1103.5.8 Vacant Buildings. A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any A, E, or I occupancy that has been vacant for more than 18 
months requests to resume as the same occupancy classification. 
 
Section 1103.5.9 Fire Wall Breech. A sprinkler system is required throughout the 
building when any modification or alteration to an existing building, with a total floor 
area of 5,000 square feet or greater, breeches or removes a required fire rated wall 
assembly. 
 
Section 1103.7 Fire Alarm Systems is amended by adding the following 
subsections: 
Section 1103.7.8 Non-Monitored Sprinkler System.  A fire alarm system shall be 
installed throughout the building when an existing, non-monitored fire sprinkler 
system is modified by 20 or more sprinkler heads. 
 
Section 1103.7.9 Sprinkled Building Fire Alarm Requirement.  An approved fire 
alarm system shall be installed in existing buildings when a fire sprinkler system is 
provided.   

 
CHAPTER 56 

EXPLOSIVES AND FIREWORKS 
 
Section 5601.2.4 Financial Responsibility is amended as follows: 
Before a permit is issued, as required by Section 5601.2, the applicant shall file with 
the jurisdiction a corporate surety bond in the principal sum of $1,000,000 (one 
million dollars) or a public liability insurance policy for the same amount, for the 
purpose of the payment of all damages to persons or property which arise from, or 
are caused by, the conduct of any act authorized by the permit upon which any 
judicial judgment results.  The fire code official is authorized to specify a greater or 
lesser amount when, in his or her opinion, conditions at the location of use indicate a 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Page 172 of 220



  

6 
 

greater or lesser amount is required.  Government entities shall be exempt from this 
bond requirement. 
 
Section 5601.2.4.1 Blasting is amended as follows: 
Before approval to do blasting is issued, the applicant for approval shall file a bond 
or submit a certificate of insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 (one million dollars) 
in each case to indemnify the jurisdiction against any and all damages arising from 
permitted blasting. 
 
Section 5601.2.4.2 Fireworks Display is amended as follows: 
Before approval for a display is issued, the permit holder shall furnish a bond or 
certificate of insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 (one million dollars) per 
occurrence for the payment of all potential damages to a person or persons or to 
property by reason of the permitted display, and arising from any acts of the permit 
holder, the agent, employees or subcontractors to indemnify the jurisdiction against 
any and all damages arising from permitted fireworks displays. 
 

CHAPTER 80 
REFERENCED STANDARDS 

Part VI-Referenced Standards is amended to add the following: 
Add the document known as Central Yavapai Fire District “Fire Protection 
Standards” for Builders, Developers, Engineers & Architects. 
 
 
APPENDIX A 
 
Section A101.2 Membership is amended as follows: 
The membership of the board shall consist of five voting members that have the 
qualifications established by this section and reside within the boundaries of the 
Central Yavapai Fire District.  In the event that it is not practical to find members as 
required by this section, the Fire Code official reserves the right to relax the 
qualifications as to create a valid professional board to serve this jurisdiction.  
Prospective members shall apply to the Fire Marshal of the jurisdiction, subject to 
confirmation by a majority vote of the Central Yavapai Fire District Fire Board.  
Members shall serve without remuneration or compensation, and shall be removed 
from office prior to the end of their appointed terms only for cause. 
 
Section A101.3 Terms of Office is deleted. 
 
Section A101.3.1 Initial Appointments is deleted. 
 
Section A101.5 Secretary of Board is amended as follows: 
The fire code official or his designee shall act as Secretary of the Board and shall 
keep a detailed record of all its proceedings, which shall set forth the reasons for its 
decisions, the vote of each member, the absence of a member, and any failure of a 
member to vote. 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

Page 173 of 220



  

7 
 

Table B105.1 Minimum Required Fire Flow and Flow Duration for Buildings is 
amended by adding Footnote c as follows: 
Footnote c: In special circumstances, where the municipal or rural water supply will 
not provide the required 1,500 gpm, the fire code official may accept a lesser 
amount.  This amount shall never be less than 1,000 gpm.  
 
APPENDIX D 
 
Section D103.2 Grade is amended as follows: 
Fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 12 percent grade. 
The exception is deleted and replaced as follows: 
Exception:  The fire code official may permit the access road grade to increase, but 
shall not exceed 15 percent if fire sprinkler protection is installed. 
 
Section D103.3 Turning Radius is amended as follows: 
The minimum turning radius shall be 28’ (twenty-eight feet) inside and 50’ (fifty feet) 
outside diameter for all fire department access roads and parking lots. 

Page 174 of 220



  

 
 

Central Yavapai Fire District 
 

Resolution No. 1316-05-01 
 

A FORMAL RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CENTRAL 
YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT ADOPTING AMENDING THE 2012 EDITION OF THE 
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE. , AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN ADDITIONS 
AND DELETIONS THERETO, REGULATING AND GOVERNING THE 
SAFEGUARDING OF LIFE AND PROPERTY FROM FIRE AND EXPLOSION 
HAZARDS ARISING FROM THE STORAGE, HANDLING AND USE OF 
HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES, MATERIALS AND DEVICES, AND FROM 
CONDITIONS HAZARDOUS TO LIFE OR PROPERTY AND THE OCCUPANCY OF 
BUILDINGS AND PREMISES IN THE CENTRAL YAVAPAI  FIRE DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION OF FEES 
THEREFORE; AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICATION AND ENFORCEMENT 
THEROF. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Central Yavapai Fire District did, on or about, December 
10June 18, 20072013, adopt the 2006 2012 International Fire Code together with 
certain amendments thereto (IFC); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Central Yavapai Fire District is authorized, pursuant to A.R.S. 
48-805 (B)(6) to adopt a nationally recognized fire code and amend or revise the 
adopted code. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Central Yavapai Fire District wishes to adopt amend the 2012 
Edition of the International Fire Code to provide for a more uniform practice and 
enforcement of the Fire Code, consistent and together with various other 
enforcement agencies with whom Central Yavapai Fire District may interact; and 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved as follows: 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED that the Central Yavapai Fire District hereby adopts 
amends the 2012 Edition of the International Fire Code (IFC), with amendments 
including Appendix Chapters A through I.Chapter 9, Section 903.2.3 Group E, 
Exception 2; Chapter 11, Section 1103.5.7 Group E, Exception 2; Chapter 80 
Referenced Standards. 
 
  
FURTHER RESOLVED, that there shall be inserted into the additions and 
modifications to the Fire Code, where applicable, the name of Central Yavapai Fire 
District as the adopting and enforcement jurisdiction, including the recitation within 
Section 101.1 of the IFC. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVED, that the geographic limits referred to in certain 
sections of the additions and modifications adopted herein are hereby established as 
follows: 
 

Page 175 of 220



  

 
 

 5704.2.9.6.1 (geographic limits in which the storage of Class I and II 
liquids in above-ground tanks outside of buildings is prohibited):  per zoning 
requirements of the Town of Prescott Valley, Town of Dewey/Humboldt and/or 
Yavapai County Planning and Building; and 
 
 5706.2.4.4 1 (geographic limits in which the storage of Class I and II 
liquids in above-ground tanks is prohibited):  per zoning requirements of the 
Town of Prescott Valley, Town of Dewey/Humboldt and/or Yavapai County Planning 
and Building; and 
 
 5806.2 (geographic limits in which the storage of flammable cryogenic 
fluids is prohibited):  per zoning requirements of the Town of Prescott Valley, 
Town of Dewey/Humboldt and/or Yavapai County Planning and Building; and 
 
 6104.2 (geographic limits in which the storage of liquefied petroleum 
gas is restricted for the protection of heavily populated or congested areas):  
per zoning requirements of the Town of Prescott Valley, Town of Dewey/Humboldt 
and/or Yavapai County Planning and Building. 
 
 FUTHER RESOLVED, that if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this resolution is for any reason held to be unconstitutional; such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this resolution. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution and the rules, regulations, 
provisions, amendments, requirements, orders and matters established and adopted 
hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
approval. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVED, that to the extent the provisions of the Amendments 
and modifications to the 2012 Edition of the International Fire Code provisions 
adopted herein conflict with the provisions of the 2006 IFC previously adopted by the 
Central Yavapai Fire District, as amended, the modifications authorized herein shall 
govern. 
 
 RESOLVED and ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 20_____. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________ 
Board Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________________________ 
Board Clerk 
 

Page 176 of 220



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVE NEW J615 INVESTIGATION POLICY; APPROVE POLICY 

AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016 NEW JOINT POLICY J407 
RETIREMENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION BENEFITS AND 
NEW JOINT POLICY J408 INSURANCE AND RELATED BENEFITS 

 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve New Policy J615 Investigation Policy effective immediately, and New 
Joint Policies J407 Retirement and Deferred Compensation Benefits, and J408 
Insurance and Related Benefits effective July 1, 2016. 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 

Page 177 of 220



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

1 

I. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this policy is to establish the standards of investigative processes 
for members of the District. 
 

II. SCOPE 
 

This policy applies to all members. 
 

III. POLICY 
 
The following policy is the basis for informal and formal investigation processes, 
recognition of Weingarten, Garrity and Laudermill rights and  adherence to a 
standard that will provide accurate, factual information regardless of the 
disciplinary outcome (if any). Investigations of employees may be initiated due to 
complaint, concern or potential violation of policy or employee performance that 
would potentially result in discipline. Additionally, investigative processes may be 
in conjunction and simultaneous to criminal/civil activities outside of the 
organization.  
 

IV. DEFINITIONS 
 
Informal Investigation: use of informational gathering, through multiple sources, 
to substantiate whether a claim or complaint has validity. Possible informational 
sources may include, but not limited to: general organizational software 
programs, social media, and personnel comments (not compelled), or sources 
that are open to public review. Usually the result of this form of investigation is 
not formal discipline.  
 
Formal Investigation: use of informational gathering, through multiple sources, 
to substantiate a claim or complaint from an informal investigation or if the claim 
or complaint is egregious, criminal or a violation of policy or performance 
standards that the use of a formal investigation is warranted.  Possible 
informational sources may include, but not be limited to: restricted organizational 
software, email, personnel interviews or written statements (compelled by 
Garrity) or sources that may be obtained through law enforcement, court order or 
legal compulsion.  
 
Weingarten Representation: Allowance by the organization to have the 
employee accompanied by a labor/employee representative during the 
investigative questioning. The employee may request a labor/employee 
representative prior to a formal interview or investigation process. If the request 
does not unduly delay the interview, meeting or process; accommodation shall 
be provided for the employee and their representative to attend. 

Page 178 of 220



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

2 

 
Garrity Warning: Admonishment to the employee regarding being compelled to 
answer the investigative questions of the employer to the best of their ability. 
Statements made (or written) under a Garrity Warning can not be used to 
substantiate legal charges or claims against the reporting party as this would be 
a violation of their Fifth Amendment Right. This will require a signature of 
acknowledgement by the recipient. 
 
Laudermill Hearing: Formal disciplinary meeting that will potentially result in a 
property loss (wages, benefit, rank, employment, etc.).  The employee(s) will be 
presented with the investigative findings and materials – including all written, 
recorded testimony and other supportive findings of the investigation. The 
employee(s) will have this opportunity to present information/evidence to dispute 
the formal disciplinary outcome. This is not a part of the Appeals/Grievance 
Process.  
 
Letter/Notice of Investigation: Written notification of the parameters of the 
investigation. The notice will be certified mailed to the employee(s) with adequate 
notification for the scheduled attendance or reschedule of the investigative 
interview. The notice will include the claim or complaint, specific instructions, and 
restrictions. This will require a signature of acknowledgement by the recipient.  
 
Investigative Summary: Written, factual summary of the formal investigative 
findings. This report may be used in the overall disciplinary process (if 
necessary), but should be provided by the impartial investigator(s) to the 
requesting supervisor(s). The summary report shall also be supported by all 
investigative materials obtained throughout the process. This will information will 
be public records restricted during the investigation and possible 
Appeals/Grievance Process.   
 
Informal Investigation: 

 
• Verification of possible validity of the complaint, concern or potential violation 

of policy/personal conduct can be achieved through general departmental 
software, social media, phone calls, interviews, and other public sources of 
information.  
 

• The ultimate purpose of the informal investigative process is to refute or 
validate a complaint or concern. If the informal process refutes the complaint 
or concern, no further action is warranted.  

 

 

Page 179 of 220



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

3 

• Another supervisor or Human Resource personnel may be utilized to verify or 
review the informal information to validate the resulting course of action. This 
is strictly confidential. 
 

• If the informal investigative process results in validating or has a significant 
probability in validating  a complaint, concern or potential violation of 
policy/personal conduct that will result (or potentially result) in formal 
discipline, the process shall proceed to a formal investigative process.  

 
• An Investigative Summary of the informal investigative process shall be 

archived for the purpose of validating or refuting the reported complaint, 
concern or potential violation. This is the only documentation that is required 
and will be archived as per the Records Retention laws of the State of 
Arizona.  

 
Formal Investigation: 
 
• Formal Investigations may be handled by Human Resources, Assistant 

Chiefs or upper management supervisors, however, it is highly 
recommended, but not mandatory, that the supervisor that the potential 
discipline will originate from, is not involved in the formal investigative 
process. This will promote an unbiased review of the information – providing a 
factual Investigative Summary devoid of any personal feelings, bias or 
interpretation. If necessary, and in extreme cases, a party outside of the 
organization may be utilized to conduct and report on the formal investigative 
interviews/process.  
 

• The employee that is subject of the formal investigation shall be placed on 
Administrative Leave pending the outcome of the investigation and discipline 
process if the complaint, concern or potential violation is directly related to 
their job performance, may result in loss of property (damaged property 
restitution, time off without pay, demotion or termination), or potentially 
involves civil law violation(s) or potential criminal activity. 

 
• If the complaint, concern or potential violation does not rise to a level of 

potential loss of property, suspension of job performance, civil or criminal 
activity, it will be the discretion of the Assistant Chiefs or the Fire Chief if the 
employee will be placed on Administrative Leave.  

 
• The employee(s) must remain available for the formal investigative process 

(as regularly assigned work schedule), but may request a rescheduling if 
there are extenuating circumstances. 

 

Page 180 of 220



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

4 

• Formal Letters and Notices of Investigation will be sent to the employee(s) via 
certified mail. The Letter/Notice shall contain the subject of the investigation, 
date, time and place of interview, and any specific instructions and/or 
restrictions.  
 

• The employee(s) being interviewed, and their supervisor(s), shall also be 
contacted directly by the investigative supervisor as to the letter/notice being 
sent and the proposed schedule for investigative interview(s) – any 
discussion as to the content of the investigation is strictly confidential. 
 

• Any employee(s) being interviewed have the right of Weingarten 
representation. The employee representative may be union, supervisor, 
coworker or legal counsel. However, this is not a court of law and the 
representative is there as a witness, ensure that the interviewee civil rights 
are not being violated and to assist with clarifying processes. They are not to 
interfere with the interview/statement process. If the employee representative 
coerces, manipulates or otherwise disrupts the interview, they will be 
removed from the interview. 

 
• The employee interviews will be recorded via audio recording or written 

submission. Full copies of the audio or written submission will be part of the 
investigative documents and shall be archived as per the Records Retention 
laws of the State of Arizona.  

 
• All employees involved with an interview or written submission shall be 

presented with a Garrity Warning and the warning shall be read, clarified, 
acknowledged and signed by the participants prior to the interview or request 
for written submission.  

 
• If the employee(s), regardless if they are the subject of the investigation or 

not, is misleading, evasive or refuses to answer questions during an interview 
or written statement, they will be subject to the discipline policy  – up to and 
including termination.  

 
• If an employee wishes to add an addendum to their original written or verbal 

responses, they can request another interview or submit a written addendum 
and will be subject to the original Garrity warning presented.  

 
• Further, if follow up or clarification is required for interview or written 

submissions, the employees will still be subject to the original Garrity Warning  
 

Page 181 of 220



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

5 

• Investigations will be done expeditiously. Due to circumstances, there may be 
a lengthy process and status updates will be reported to the subject(s) of the 
investigation and involved supervisors biweekly, if necessary. 

 
• Upon completion of the investigation, an Investigative Summary will be 

presented, with all accompanying documentation, audio files, and data to the 
supervisor that will potentially issue the discipline for review. The Investigative 
Summary may include recommendations for consideration for discipline, 
resolution or no further action – however, this is not required for the 
Investigative Summary. 

 
• All investigative materials shall be submitted to Human Resources and 

archived as per Records Retention laws of the State of Arizona. 
 

Post Investigation 
 
• If the investigation results in no action, then notification via written letter or 

notice will be made to the employee(s). Additionally, the supervisor that 
initiated the investigation or possible discipline may want to verbally notify the 
employee(s) of the outcome. 
 

• If the investigation results in a consideration of discipline other than a property 
loss, then the supervisor will issue the proposed discipline to the employee(s) 
as outline in the Discipline Policy and the proposed discipline is subject to 
grievance proceedings.  
 

• If the investigation results in a potential property loss (damaged property 
restitution, time off without pay, demotion or termination), a Laudermill 
Hearing will be scheduled with the employee(s) subject to the potential 
discipline.  
 

• A notice of Laudermill Hearing will be will be sent to the employee(s) via 
certified mail. The Letter/Notice shall contain the subject of the investigation, 
date, time and place of hearing, and any specific instructions and/or 
restrictions. 
 

• All investigative findings - including all recordings, data and documentation 
shall be provided to the employee(s) that are subject to the Laudermill 
Hearing, at the employee(s) request. This will allow the employee(s) the 
opportunity to review the investigative information and provide refuting or 
additional information for consideration at the Laudermill Hearing. 
 

• An employee may waive their right to a Laudermill Hearing through written 
notification to Human Resources or supervisor that is oversight to the 

Page 182 of 220



J615 INVESTIGATIONS 
Created/Revised: 06/21/2016 
Created 06/21/2016 
Reviewed: 11/24/2015 
 

6 

Laudermill Hearing. At which time, the proposed discipline will be issued to 
the employee(s) as outlined in the Discipline Policy and the proposed 
discipline is subject to grievance proceedings.  
 

• The employee(s) is allowed representation, as per Weingarten, at the 
Laudermill Hearing. The employee representative may be union, supervisor, 
coworker or legal counsel. However, this is not a court of law and the 
representative is there as a witness, ensure that the interviewee civil rights 
are not being violated and to assist with clarifying processes. They are not to 
interfere with the interview/statement process. If the employee representative 
coerces, manipulates or otherwise disrupts the hearing, they will be removed 
from the hearing proceedings.  
 

• The employee(s) may request additional attendees at the Laudermill Hearing 
for the narrow purpose to refute or present additional investigative information 
not otherwise considered. However, prior to the hearing, there must be a 
written request for the attendee(s) and purpose of their participation at the 
hearing for consideration. Based on the written request, a determination of 
participation will be notified to the employee(s), prior to the hearing, by 
Human Resources or supervisor that is oversight to the Laudermill Hearing.  
 

• The Laudermill Hearing will be audio recorded and the recording/documents 
presented will be considered part of the investigative findings documentation 
and archived as per the Record Retention laws of the State of Arizona.  
 

• After the Laudermill Hearing, if the investigation results in discipline, then the 
supervisor will issue the proposed discipline to the employee(s) as outlined in 
the Discipline Policy and the proposed discipline is subject to grievance 
proceedings. 
 

• After the Laudermill Hearing, if the investigation results in no action, then 
notification via written letter or notice will be made to the employee(s). 
Additionally, the supervisor that initiated the investigation or possible 
discipline may want to verbally notify the employee(s) of the outcome. 

 
All investigative documents, data and audio files are strictly confidential. Discussion of 
investigation findings, documents, files, proceedings or outcomes outside of those 
directly involved is strictly prohibited and may result in disciplinary action as outlined in 
policy.  

Page 183 of 220



J407 RETIREMENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 12/02/2008 / 10/15/201300/00/2016 
Created/Revised 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 10/15/201305/24/2016 

 

 

EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016 
 
I. PURPOSE 

 
The purpose of this policy is to outline the pension systems and deferred 
compensation benefits that are offered to District members. 
 

II. SCOPE 
 
The availability of pension and deferred compensation retirement benefits applies 
to all full-time and some part-time District members as outlined by each plan. 
 

III. POLICY 
 

PSPRS Retirement 
Fire operations members belong to the Public Safety Personnel Retirement 
System (PSPRS) and contribute a percentage of their wages into a retirement 
account. A deferred retirement allowance is available to public safety members 
with at least 10 years of service. Members who terminate their employment 
before retirement may withdraw their accumulated contribution in a lump-sum 
payment upon separation. 
 
All other full-time non-PSPRS members will participate in the Arizona State 
Retirement System (ASRS). 
 
Reserve Firefighter Pension 
 
DROP Program 
Members hired prior to 1/1/2012 with 20 years of credited PSPRS service are 
eligible to enter the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) Program. Members 
interested in entering the DROP Program must contact Human Resources to 
complete the paperwork.  
 
PSPRS eliminated the DROP Program for individuals hired on or after 1/1/2012. 
 
DROP Program prior to 7/1/2013 
Members who have entered the DROP Program prior to 7/1/2013 must 
contribute their normal PSPRS percentage deduction into PSPRS, the District’s 
401(a) plan, or 457(b) plan. The District will contribute the PSPRS rate as set on 
June 30, 2012 into the 401(a) plan. 
 
DROP Program effective 7/1/2013 
The District will contribute matching funds up to 10% of a member's earnings into 
a 401(a) account if the member enters DROP on or after July 1, 2013 and the 

Page 184 of 220



J407 RETIREMENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 12/02/2008 / 10/15/201300/00/2016 
Created/Revised 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 10/15/201305/24/2016 

 

 

member is contributing up to 10% into PSPRS, a 401(a), 457(b) account, or a 
combination of those accounts. The Districts contributions will only be deposited 
into an employer sponsored and qualified 401(a) plan.  
 
ASRS Retirement 
ASRS 10/10 Program effective 7/1/2013 
Members that are enrolled in the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) that 
have accumulated 20 years of service or 80 points (years of service plus age) 
may contribute up to 10% of their earnings into ASRS,  a 401(a), or 457(b) 
account and the District will match the percentage up to 10% for 5 years. The 
member is not required to terminate employment at the end of 5 years. The 
Districts contributions will only be deposited into an employer sponsored and 
qualified 401(a) plan.  

 
Public Safety Officer’s Benefit Act (PSOB) 
The PSOB Act provides a * benefit* to the eligible survivors of a public safety 
officer whose death is the direct and proximate result of a traumatic injury 
sustained in the line of duty. The Act also provides the same benefit to a public 
safety officer who has been permanently and totally disabled as the direct result 
of a catastrophic personal injury sustained in the line of duty. The injury must 
permanently prevent the individual from performing any gainful work. 

 
*Annually, on October 1st, the benefit will be adjusted by the percentage of 
change in the Consumer price Index. 
 
A copy of the Act is available from Human Resources.  

 
401(a) Deferred Compensation Plan 
The District offers a 401(a) Deferred Compensation Plan. Upon initiation of the 
plan for the Central Arizona Fire and Medical Authority (CAFMA) effective July 1, 
2016, any active PSPRS employee that has been a continuous fulltime member 
of either the Central Yavapai or Chino Valley Fire Districts for at least 4 years will 
become eligible for a one time eligibility window of 24 months to elect to 
participate in the 401(a) plan with a minimum of a 1% (gross wages) employee 
contribution. Alternatively, the However, if the fulltime member may demonstrate 
does not have 4 years of continuous full time service with either the Central 
Yavapai or Chino Valley Fire Districts when combined with upon the member’s 
term of employment with CAFMA., they will need to wait until their combined, 
continuous full time employment with the Central Yavapai or Chino Valley Fire 
Districts and CAFMA will equal 4 years. On the member’s fourth anniversary of 
continuous full time service, At which time, the member has 24 months to elect to 
participate in the 401(a) plan. All new PSPRS members of CAFMA will become 
eligible to participate in this plan once they have been a continuous fulltime 
member for 4 years. Once eligibility is reached, the member has twenty-four 

Page 185 of 220



J407 RETIREMENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 12/02/2008 / 10/15/201300/00/2016 
Created/Revised 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 10/15/201305/24/2016 

 

 

months to elect to participate in the 401(a) plan with a minimum of 1% of salary 
contributed. The option to participate is available only during this twenty-four 
month time frame. 
 
The percentage that the member contributes to the PSPRS 401(a) can only be 
changed at the beginning of each fiscal year and can never be less than 1% of 
salary. 
 
 
Any ASRS employee that begins employment with the Central Arizona Fire and 
Medical Authority shall have 24 months to decide to participate in the ASRS 
401(a) plan or the Nationwide 401(a) plan. The ASRS Plan requires a 5 year 
100% vesting schedule at 20% per year. The Nationwide 401(a) plan does not 
have a vesting requirement. Both plans require a set employee contribution that 
can not be changed during employment with CAFMA.  
 

The percentage that the member contributes to the PSPRS 401(a) can only be changed 
at the beginning of each fiscal year and can never be less than 1% of salary. 
 

457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan 
The District offers a 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan. Any member, except 
reserves, may choose to contribute a percentage of their salary or a flat dollar 
amount into the 457(b) plan. 
 
Employer sponsored Alternative Social Security Plan 
CAFMA offers an alternative contribution plan as a result of discontinuing 
established 218 agreements that existed with the Central Yavapai and Chino 
Valley Fire Districts. The Alternative Social Security Plan is for ASRS members 
only and is in effect as of July 1, 2016. 
 
The plan offers a maximum 6.2% contribution match of employer funds into a 
401(a) account up to a maximum if the employee contribution ratees of 
contributes 6.2% of the employee’s irtheir gross earnings into his or her their 457, 
401(a), or combination of the two plans. The employee may elect to contribute 
less than 6.2%, in which case the at which time; the Eemployer will reduce 
itstheir contribution match by the same amountproportionately.  
 
The Eemployer contributions will only be into a 401(a) account in the name of the 
participating employee. If the employee wishes to establish a 401(a) plan 
account, see the section specific to 401(a) Deferred Compensation Plan for 
those requirements. If the employee does not wish to participate in the 401(a) 
plan, the employee ythey may contribute up to  the full 6.2% to his or herto their 
457 account; the full 6.2% - however, the Eemployer must will establish a 401(a) 
account on the employee’s irtheir behalf for the Eemployer match contributions.  

Page 186 of 220



J407 RETIREMENT AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 12/02/2008 / 10/15/201300/00/2016 
Created/Revised 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 10/15/201305/24/2016 

 

 

Under these circumstances,  – the employee will not have an ability to contribute 
to that account.  
 
 

 
 

Page 187 of 220



408J408 INSURANCE AND RELATED BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 10/11/2010 / 00/00/2016 
Created/Revised: 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 12/01/201005/24/2016 
EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016 
 

1 

I. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this benefits policy is to identify the various insurance related 
benefits for members of the District and how they apply based on the type of 
employment held with the District. 
 

II. SCOPE 
 

This policy applies to all full-time and part-time District members. 
 
III. POLICY 
 

Health Insurance 
The District may provide health insurance coverage for all members who are 
scheduled to work 24 or more hours per week. Dependent coverage may be 
available to all members who are scheduled to work 24 or more hours per week. 
The member's cost will be pro-rated, depending on the number of hours worked.  
 
The District may pay a portion of the dependent coverage each fiscal year, as 
funded by the Board. 

 
Life Insurance 
All full-time members may be provided with a basic life insurance policy. The 
member is automatically included in a group term-life insurance plan at the same 
time the medical insurance coverage takes effect at no cost to the member.  

 
Long Term Disability 
Both PSPRS and ASRS provide a disability benefit program for members. This 
program provides a monthly benefit designed to partially replace income lost 
during periods of total disability resulting from a covered injury, illness, or other 
disability condition. 

 
Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP) 
The District will contribute 1% of a member's gross earnings base salary into the 
Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP) each pay period effective July 1, 2016year 
on July 1, for all members who are scheduled to work 20 or more hours per week 
(receiving a prorated contribution). Members who have at least 17 years of 
combined (CYFD or CVFD and CAFMA) continuous service and leave 
employment service due to as a retirement with the District must, as a group, 
choose to have a set percentage, a flat dollar amount, or none of their accrued 
vacation and sick leave contributed into the PEHP plan pre-tax*. This decision 
must be made by March of each fiscal year. On an annual basis at the beginning 
of each fiscal year, theThe Board of Directors , yearly at the beginning of each 

Page 188 of 220



408J408 INSURANCE AND RELATED BENEFITS 
Created/Revised: 10/11/2010 / 00/00/2016 
Created/Revised: 00/00/2016 
Reviewed: 12/01/201005/24/2016 
EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016 
 

2 

fiscal year, will approve the dollar amount or percentage chosen by the retirees.. 
The employees that voluntarily separate service prior to 17 years of continuous 
service will have their accrued vacation and sick leave paid out per policy in a 
cash disbursement or may elect to have the funds placed in their 457 account (if 
applicable). Any employee that is terminated shall be paid out per policy in a 
cash disbursement only.  
 
*There are 2two PEHP accounts:  A set percentage will go into a different 
account than a flat dollar amount. The bBoard of Directors, upon 
recommendation of those scheduled for retirement, may elect to have an 
equitable dollar amount placed in a more flexible PEHP account with the balance 
above the set dollar amount being deposited into the more restrictive – premium 
only PEHP account.  

 

Page 189 of 220



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION RELATED TO EMANUEL PINES CAMP AND ROAD 

ACCESS 
 
Fire Marshal Chase will discuss his findings regarding Mr. Jensen’s concerns. 
 
 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 

Page 190 of 220



P
a
g
e
 1

9
1
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

9
2
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

9
3
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

9
4
 o

f 
2
2
0



P
a
g
e
 1

9
5
 o

f 
2
2
0



TO:  Fire Board 
FROM: Chief Freitag 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE APPROVAL TO OPEN ESCROW FOR 

THE PURCHASE OF 54,750 SQUARE FEET, A PORTION OF APN 103-
60-001A, AS DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED PRELIMINARY SITE 
PLAN, IN THE AMOUNT OF $98,812.50. 

 
 
This property is located in back of Stoneridge at the end of Old Black Canyon Highway. 
The CYFD Board approved the purchase of this property as part of this fiscal year’s 
budget for the purpose of a future fire station. If approved, CYFD will open escrow and 
CAFMA will close escrow. 
 
Suggested Motion: 
 
Approve the Opening of Escrow for the Purchase of 54,750 square feet of Property 
Described as a Portion of APN 103-60-001A, in the Amount of $98,812.50. 
 
 
If you have any questions, please call Assistant Chief of Administration Tharp or myself 
at 772-7711. 
  
 

Page 196 of 220



Page 197 of 220



Page 198 of 220



Page 199 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 1 
 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
  THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made this ______ 
day of __________________, ________, by and between THE FAIN SIGNATURE GROUP, 
LLC, an Arizona limited liability company (the “Seller”), and CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE 
DISTRICT, a _______________, and/or Assignee (the “Buyer”). 
 
  In consideration of the covenants in this Agreement, Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE I 
Purchase and Sale 

 
1.1 The Property.  Seller agrees to sell to Buyer, and Buyer agrees to purchase 

from Seller, in accordance with this Agreement, the following described real property located 
in Yavapai County, Arizona (the “Property”): 
 
 

The parcel depicted on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, containing 
approximately 54,750 square feet, commonly known as           , 
a Portion of APN                     , and more particularly 
described as: 
 
Parcel A; INSERT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
As soon as the exact legal description has been determined, 
such description shall be attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 
“B”, and made a part hereof by this reference. 
 
1.2 Survey of the Property.  Promptly following the execution of this 

Agreement, Seller shall cause the exterior boundaries of the Property to be surveyed by a 
registered land surveyor.  The surveyor shall stake all corners, shall prepare a plat depicting 
the Property and shall provide a legal description thereof.  Seller shall pay for the cost of the 
Survey of the exterior boundaries, the Plat and the legal description of the Property; Buyer 
shall pay for any additional information requested on the Survey.  Seller shall deliver the plat 
to Buyer promptly upon its completion.  Buyer requests an ALTA survey Yes____No____   
 

1.3 ALTA Survey.  If the Buyer desires to obtain an ALTA survey, or other 
more extensive survey of the Property than is contemplated in Section 1.2, including any 
easements, utilities and encroachments, which may affect the Property, the additional cost 
thereof shall be paid by Buyer.  Seller shall request that the Survey as indicated in Section 1.2 

Page 200 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 2 
 

will include all matters relating to an ALTA survey, and any easements, utilities and 
encroachments, which may affect the Property. 

 
1.4 Commitment for Title Insurance.  Promptly following the execution of this 

Agreement, Seller shall cause Pioneer Title Agency (the “Title Company”) to prepare a 
commitment for title insurance (Standard Owner’s Form) (the “Commitment”) with respect to 
the Property.  Seller shall deliver the Commitment to Buyer promptly upon its completion. 

 
1.5 Property Studies.  After the execution of this Agreement and for a forty-

five (45) day period commencing at the opening of escrow, as herein after defined, (the “due 
diligence period”), Buyer and Buyer’s representatives shall have access to the Property for the 
purposes of reviewing and investigating the physical and environmental condition of the 
Property, the zoning, land use and building requirements and restrictions applicable to the 
Property.  Buyer shall be responsible for all expenses incurred in connection with his review 
and investigation of the Property.  Buyer shall indemnify and defend Seller against and hold 
Seller harmless from all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements, arising from any entry on the 
Property by Buyer or any of Buyer’s representatives. 

 
ARTICLE II 

Purchase Price 
 

2.1 Amount and Payment.  The purchase price (the “Purchase Price”) for the 
Property shall be ONE AND 75/100’s Dollars ($1.75) per square foot or NINETY-FIVE 
THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED TWELVE DOLLARS AND 50/100 Dollars ($95,812.50) 
subject to adjustment as set forth in Section 2.2.  The Purchase Price shall be paid by Buyer to 
Seller, as follows: 

 
(a)  Buyer shall deposit the sum of __________________ 

Dollars ($___________) (the “Deposit”) in immediately available funds, in 
escrow with Deborah Quinn (the “Escrow Agent”), within five business days 
after execution of this Agreement. 

 
(b)  Buyer shall deposit the balance of ____________________ 

_____________________________ Dollars ($_____________) (subject to 
adjustment as set forth in Section 2.2) in immediately available funds, in 
escrow with the Escrow Agent on the Closing Date (as hereinafter defined).  
All funds deposited in escrow, less Seller’s share of closing costs and prorated 
taxes, shall be disbursed by the Escrow Agent to Seller on the Closing Date. 

 

Page 201 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 3 
 

2.2 Adjustment of Purchase Price.  The Purchase Price has been calculated on 
the assumption that the Property contains 54,750 square feet.  If the survey of the Property 
required by Section 1.2 indicates that there are more or fewer than 54,750 square feet within 
the exterior boundaries of the Property, the Purchase Price shall be adjusted on the basis of 
$1.75 per square foot. 

 
ARTICLE III 

Completion of Sale 
 
3.1 Escrow Instructions.  Buyer shall have five (5) business days after receipt 

of this Agreement to accept the terms of this Agreement and return an executed copy of the 
Agreement to the Seller, or the terms of this Agreement shall be null and void.  Promptly 
following the execution of this Agreement, Seller and Buyer each shall give appropriate 
written escrow instructions, consistent with this Agreement, to the Escrow Agent.  

3.2 Place and Date.  The purchase and sale of the Property shall be completed 
in accordance with Article VIII (the “Closing”).  The Closing shall occur through an escrow 
with the Escrow Agent at Pioneer Title Agency on or before Ninety days after opening 
escrow estimated to be September 22, 2016, (the “Closing Date”), or at such other place or on 
such other date as Seller and Buyer agree in writing. 

3.3 Provision for Extensions.  Request for extensions shall be in writing by 
both Buyer and Seller.  Maximum number of extensions shall be two (2) thirty (30) day 
extensions.  Each extension shall require an additional non-refundable deposit in the amount 
of ______________, the amount of which shall be applied to the purchase price. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

Title to and Condition of the Property 
 

4.1 Conveyance of the Property.  Seller shall convey to Buyer good and 
marketable fee title to the Property by a duly executed and acknowledged special warranty 
deed (the “Deed”), free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, leases, easements, restrictions, 
rights, covenants and conditions, except (a) for those matters set forth on Schedule B of the 
Commitment furnished to Buyer pursuant to Section 1.4, and approved by Buyer pursuant to 
Section 7.2(c), (b) matters shown by a correct survey of the Property or a physical inspection 
of the Property, and (c) any other matters created, permitted or approved by Buyer 
(collectively, the “Permitted Exceptions”). 

 
4.2 Acceptance of Title.  Buyer’s acceptance of the Deed from Seller for the 

Property at the Closing on the Closing Date and the issuance of the title insurance policy 
described in Section 7.2(d) to Buyer by the Title Company shall conclusively establish that 

Page 202 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 4 
 

Seller conveyed the Property as required by Section 4.1 and shall discharge in full Seller’s 
obligations under Section 4.1 with respect to title to the Property. 

 
4.3 Condition of the Property.  Except for the express representations and 

warranties of Seller set forth in Section 5.1 and in the Deed, Buyer is acquiring the Property 
“as is”, without any covenant, representation or warranty of any kind or nature whatsoever, 
express or implied, and Buyer is relying solely on Buyer’s own investigation of the Property. 

 
ARTICLE V 

Representations and Warranties 
 
5.1 Seller.  The representations and warranties of Seller in this Section 5.1 are 

a material inducement for Buyer to enter into this Agreement.  Buyer would not purchase the 
Property from Seller without such representations and warranties of Seller. Such 
representations and warranties shall survive the Closing.  Seller represents and warrants to 
Buyer as of the date of this Agreement as follows: 

 
(a)  Seller is a limited liability company duly organized and 

validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Arizona.  
Seller has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform 
this Agreement.  The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement 
by Seller have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary action on the 
part of Seller.  This Agreement is a legal, valid and binding obligation of 
Seller, enforceable against Seller in accordance with its terms, subject to 
bankruptcy laws and other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally, and by the 
exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity. 

 
(b)  Seller has employed Fain Signature Group Properties, Inc. 

(Ron Fain, Designated Broker), as broker, in connection with the sale of the 
Property to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement. Seller has agreed to pay such 
broker a commission at the Closing, and Seller agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless the Buyer against any liability with respect thereto. 

 
(c)  Seller has received no notice of any action, suit or 

proceeding (at law, in equity, in eminent domain or otherwise) pending against 
the Property or against Seller relating to the Property. 

 
(d)  The Seller, Fain Signature Group, LLC, is not currently the 

owner of record of the property; however, prior to the close of escrow the 
Property will be transferred from the current owner of record 
______________________________ to Fain Signature Group, LLC.  

Page 203 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 5 
 

 
5.2 Buyer. The representations and warranties of Buyer in this Section 5.2 

are a material inducement for Seller to enter into this Agreement.  Seller would not sell the 
Property to Buyer without such representations and warranties of Buyer.  Such representations 
and warranties shall survive the Closing.  Buyer represents and warrants to Seller as of the 
date of this Agreement as follows: 

 
(a)  Buyer has full power and authority to enter into this 

Agreement and to perform this Agreement.  This Agreement is a legal, valid 
and binding obligation of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer in accordance with 
its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy laws and other laws affecting 
creditors’ rights generally, and by the exercise of judicial discretion in 
accordance with general principles of equity. 

 
(b)  Buyer has not employed or engaged any broker or finder or 

incurred any liability for any commission or fee to any broker or finder in 
connection with the purchase of the Property from Seller pursuant to this 
Agreement.   

 
(c)  Buyer has represented to Seller that Central Arizona Fire 

and Medical Authority will be the organization (as “Assignee”) that would 
ultimately close the transaction. 

 
ARTICLE VI 

Covenants 
 
6.1 Design Plan Approval.  Prior to construction of any improvements 

upon the Property, Buyer shall prepare and submit to Seller, for Seller’s architectural control 
and approval, which approval shall not unreasonably be withheld, a site plan, signage plan, 
exterior drawings (which shall include a schedule of exterior finishes), and a landscaping 
plan, pertaining to the improvements (the “Improvements”) proposed to be erected upon the 
Property (the “Design Plans”).  Seller shall have a period of 30 business days after its receipt 
of Buyer’s Design Plans to approve or disapprove the same in accordance with Seller’s good 
faith and reasonably exercised discretion.  In the event Seller disapproves Buyer’s Design 
Plans, it shall give Buyer written notice of such disapproval (which notice must specify the 
reasons for such disapproval and suggested revisions necessary to gain Seller’s approval) 
within said 30 day period, and thereafter, Buyer shall have a period of 30 days from its receipt 
of same to revise and resubmit the Design Plans to Seller for its approval, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld.  This process shall continue until such time that the 
parties may agree on the Design Plans.  Buyer agrees that it will, in good faith, modify the 
Design Plans in such manner as may be necessary in order to gain Seller’s approval. 

Page 204 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 6 
 

 
6.2 Utilities.  No Utility extensions will be provided. Buyer accepts 

property in its current condition. 
 
  6.3 Indemnification by Seller.  Seller shall indemnify and defend Buyer 
against and hold Buyer harmless from all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs 
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements, that may be suffered or 
incurred by Buyer if any representation or warranty made by Seller in Section 5.1 was untrue 
or incorrect in any respect when made or at the Closing Date, or that may be caused by any 
breach by Seller of any such representation or warranty. 

 
6.4  Indemnification by Buyer.  Buyer shall indemnify and defend Seller  

against and hold Seller harmless from all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs 
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements, that may be suffered or 
incurred by Seller if any representation or warranty made by Buyer in Section 5.2 was untrue 
or incorrect in any respect when made or at the Closing Date, or that may be caused by any 
breach by Buyer of any such representation or warranty. 

 
6.5 Fencing. Buyer agrees that the Property is adjacent to ranching property,  

Buyer will be responsible for fencing the Property prior to the commencement of construction 
to Arizona Department of Transportation specification or better and in accordance with 
Arizona Game and Fish regulations to prevent injury to persons, cattle or other property.  
Buyer shall maintain such fencing in a state of good repair and shall be responsible for any 
injury or loss as a result of persons gaining illegal access to ranch property through such 
fencing. 

 
ARTICLE VII 

Conditions Precedent 
 

7.1 Seller. The obligations of Seller under this Agreement are subject to 
satisfaction of all of the conditions set forth in this Section 7.1.  Seller may waive any or all of 
such conditions in whole or in part, but any such waiver shall be effective only if made in 
writing.  After the Closing, any such condition that has not been satisfied shall be treated as 
having been waived in writing.  No such waiver shall constitute a waiver by Seller of any of 
its rights or remedies if Buyer defaults in the performance of any covenant or agreement to be 
performed by Buyer under this Agreement, or if Buyer breaches any representation or 
warranty made by Buyer in Section 5.2.  If any condition set forth in this Section 7.1 is not 
fully satisfied or waived in writing by Seller, this Agreement shall terminate, but without 
releasing Buyer from liability if Buyer defaults in the performance of any covenant or 
agreement to be performed by Buyer under this Agreement, or if Buyer breaches any 
representation or warranty made by Buyer before such termination. 

Page 205 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 7 
 

 
(a)  On the Closing Date, Buyer shall not be in default in the 

performance of any covenant or agreement to be performed by Buyer under 
this Agreement. 

 
(b)  On the Closing Date, all representations and warranties 

made by Buyer in Section 5.2 shall be true and correct as if made on and as of 
the Closing Date. 

 
7.2 Buyer. The obligations of Buyer under this Agreement are subject to 

satisfaction of all of the conditions set forth in this Section 7.2.  Buyer may waive any or all of 
such conditions in whole or in part, but any such waiver shall be effective only if made in 
writing.  After the Closing, any such condition that has not been satisfied shall be treated as 
having been waived in writing.  No such waiver shall constitute a waiver by Buyer of any of 
its rights or remedies if Seller defaults in the performance of any covenant or agreement to be 
performed by Seller under this Agreement, or if Seller breaches any representation or 
warranty made by Seller in Section 5.1.  If any condition set forth in this Section 7.2 is not 
fully satisfied or waived in writing by Buyer, this Agreement shall terminate, but without 
releasing Seller from liability if Seller defaults in the performance of any covenant or 
agreement to be performed by Seller under this Agreement, or if Seller breaches any 
representation or warranty made by Seller before such termination. 

 
(a)  On the Closing Date, Seller shall not be in default in the 

performance of any covenant or agreement to be performed by Seller under 
this Agreement. 

 
(b)  On the Closing Date, all representations and warranties 

made by Seller in Section 5.1 shall be true and correct as if made on and as of 
the Closing Date. 

 
(c) Buyer shall have approved the Commitment.  Upon 

delivery of the Commitment to Buyer, pursuant to Section 1.4, Buyer shall 
have a period of 10 business days to approve or disapprove the Commitment.  
If Buyer fails to deliver a written objection to Seller within such period of time, 
it shall be conclusively presumed that Buyer approved the Commitment.  In 
order to disapprove of the Commitment, Buyer shall deliver to Seller and the 
Escrow Agent a notice of disapproval, specifying in detail the reason for the 
disapproval.  Upon receipt of notice of disapproval by Seller, Seller shall have 
a period of 30 business days within which to remove or rectify the matter 
objected to by Buyer.  If Seller is unable, or chooses not to remove or rectify 
the matter objected to within such 30-day period, Buyer shall have the right to 

Page 206 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 8 
 

rescind this Agreement, and the parties shall thereupon be restored to status 
quo ante.  If Buyer does not elect to rescind this Agreement before the Closing 
Date, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and the Closing shall 
occur on the Closing Date. 

 
(d)  On the Closing Date, the Title Company shall be 

irrevocably committed to issue a Standard Owner’s Policy of Title Insurance, 
with liability equal to the Purchase Price, insuring Buyer that fee title to the 
Property is vested in the Buyer, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions. 

 
(e)  Buyer shall have approved the Survey and any Property Studies.   

Upon delivery of the Survey and Property Studies in accordance with Articles 1.2 and 
1.5, Buyer shall have a period of ten (10) business days to approve or disapprove the 
Survey and any Property Studies.  If Buyer fails to deliver a written objection to Seller 
within such period of time, it shall be conclusively presumed that Buyer approved the 
Survey and Property Studies.  In order to disapprove the Survey and any Property 
Studies, Buyer shall deliver to Seller and the Escrow Agent a notice of disapproval, 
specifying in detail the reason for the disapproval.  Upon receipt of notice of 
disapproval by Seller, Seller shall have a period of 30 business days within which to 
remove or rectify the matter(s) objected to by Buyer.  If Seller is unable, or chooses 
not to remove or rectify the matter(s) objected to within such 30 business day period, 
Buyer shall have the right to rescind this Agreement or accept the property with 
objections, and the parties shall thereupon be restored to status quo ante.  If Buyer 
does not elect to rescind this Agreement before the Closing Date, this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect, and the closing shall occur on the Closing Date. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

Closing 
 

8.1 Procedure.  Seller and Buyer shall cause the following to occur at the 
Closing on the Closing Date: 
 

(a)  The Deed for the Property, duly executed and acknowledged 
by Seller, shall be recorded in the office of the County Recorder of Yavapai 
County, Arizona.   

 
(b)  An Affidavit of Property Value, as required by A.R.S. §11-

1134 duly executed and acknowledged by Seller and Buyer, shall be filed in 
the office of the County Recorder of Yavapai County, Arizona. 

 

Page 207 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 9 
 

(c) Buyer shall pay the balance of the Purchase Price in 
accordance with Section 2.1(b). 

 
(d)  The Title Company shall issue the title insurance policy 

described in Section 7.2(d). 
 
8.2 Possession.  Seller shall transfer possession of the Property to Buyer on the 

Closing Date.   
 
8.3 Closing Costs.  Seller shall pay the premium for the title insurance policy 

described in Section 7.2(d) and one-half of the escrow fee charged by the Escrow Agent.  
Buyer shall pay one-half of the escrow fee charged by the Escrow Agent.  All other closing 
costs shall be paid by Seller and/or Buyer, respectively, in keeping with the local custom. 

 
8.4 Prorations.   All current property taxes and assessments shall be prorated 

between Seller and Buyer as of the Closing Date, based upon the most recent available 
figures.  Seller shall pay all taxes and assessments relating to the Property that are allocable to 
the period before the Closing Date, and Buyer shall pay all taxes and assessments relating to 
the Property that are allocable to the period on and after the Closing Date. 

 
ARTICLE IX 

General 
 
9.1  Notices.  All notices and other communications required or permitted by 

this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be delivered by personal delivery or deposited 
with the United States Postal Service, certified with return receipt request, or delivered by a 
nationally recognized private courier service, with proper postage or other charges prepaid, or 
by facsimile with computer-generated confirmation of receipt, addressed as follows: 

 
If to Seller, to:  The Fain Signature Group, L.L.C. 
   3001 Main St., Ste. 2B 

Prescott Valley, AZ  86314 
Phone: 928-772-8844 

   Fax: 928-772-8650 
  

Page 208 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 10 
 

If to Buyer, to:  Central Yavapai Fire District 
   c/o Scott A. Freitag, Fire Chief 
   Central Arizona Fire and Medical 
   8555 E. Yavapai Road 
   Prescott Valley, AZ  86314 
   Phone:  928-_____________________ 
   Fax: ____________________________ 
  
If to the Escrow Pioneer Title Agency 
Agent, to:  Deborah Quinn 
   2955 N. Lake Valley Road 
   Prescott Valley, AZ  86314 
   Phone:  928-772-4800 

     Fax: 928-460-3655 
 
or to such other address or facsimile number as a party may hereafter specify for such purpose 
by notice to each other party hereto.  Each such notice or other communication shall be 
effective (i) if delivered in person, on the date of delivery, (ii) if delivered by private courier, 
on the date of delivery, (iii) if given by facsimile, when such facsimile is transmitted and the 
appropriate facsimile confirmation is received, or (iv) if deposited with the United States 
Postal Service, on the third business day following the date of postmark. 

 
9.2  Breach.  In the event of a breach of this Agreement by Seller, Buyer shall 

have the right to enforce specific performance of this Agreement, as its sole remedy at law or 
in equity.  In the event of a breach of this Agreement by Buyer, Seller shall have all such 
rights and remedies afforded at law or in equity on account of such breach.  

 
9.3  Attorneys’ Fees.  If there is any legal action or proceeding between Seller 

and Buyer arising from or based on this Agreement, the unsuccessful party to such action or 
proceeding shall pay to the prevailing party all costs and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees incurred by such prevailing party.  

 
9.4  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 

and governed by the law of the State of Arizona. 
 
9.5  Severability.  If any term, provision, covenant or restriction of this 

Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, 
the remainder of the terms, provisions, covenants and restrictions of this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated so long 
as the economic or legal substance of the transaction contemplated hereby is not affected in 
any manner materially adverse to either party. 

Page 209 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 11 
 

9.6  Amendments; Entire Agreement.  This Agreement may not be modified, 
amended, altered or supplemented, except upon the execution and delivery of a written 
agreement executed by the parties hereto.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement 
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 
and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, oral or written, with respect thereto. 

 
9.7  Terminology.  The captions herein are included for convenience of 

reference only and shall be ignored in the construction or interpretation hereof.  All personal 
pronouns used in this Agreement, whether used in the masculine, feminine or neuter gender 
shall, where appropriate, include all other genders and the singular shall include the plural and 
vice versa. 

 
9.8  Further Assurances.  From and after the date of this Agreement, Seller and 

Buyer agree to do such things, perform such acts, and make, execute, acknowledge and 
deliver such documents as may be reasonably necessary or proper and usual to complete the 
transaction contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out the purpose of this Agreement in 
accordance with this Agreement. 

 
9.9  Waivers.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement or any breach of 

this Agreement shall be effective unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the waiving 
party and any such waiver shall not be deemed a waiver of any other provisions of this 
Agreement or any other or subsequent breach of this Agreement. 

 
9.10  Time of the Essence.  The parties agree that time shall be of the essence 

in the performance of obligations hereunder. 
 
9.11  Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be 

binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and 
assigns; provided that no party may assign, delegate or otherwise transfer any of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement without the written consent of the other party hereto. 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]  

Page 210 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 12 
 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller and Buyer have executed this Purchase Agreement 
as of the date first hereinabove written. 
 
 

SELLER:   THE FAIN SIGNATURE GROUP, L.L.C., 
 an Arizona limited liability company 
 
 By: THE FAIN COMPANIES, L.L.C.,  

an Arizona limited liability company, 
Its Manager 

 
 
 By: _____________________________ 
  S. BRAD FAIN 

Its Member 
 
 

BUYER:   CENTRAL YAVAPAI FIRE DISTRICT 
   A _____________________________ 
 
 
 
   By:____________________________ 
   Name:__________________________ 
   Title:___________________________ 

             
        
  

Page 211 of 220



 
 

CYFD-PSA - 06/13/2016 V1 Page 13 
 

      
STATE OF ARIZONA   ) 
                 ) ss: 
County of Yavapai    ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _______ day of 
_________________, ______, by S. BRAD FAIN, Member of THE FAIN COMPANIES, 
L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, in its capacity as Manager to THE FAIN 
SIGNATURE GROUP, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, on behalf of the 
company. 

 
________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF _______________ ) 
                   ) ss: 
County of ________________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 
_______________, 20___, by   ______________________, Central Yavapai Fire District, a 
_________________________-, on behalf of the company. 

 
 
________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
 
 
 
For Broker Use Only:   
 
Broker File/Log No. _________________Manager’s Initials _________Broker’s Initials _________Date _______________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 212 of 220


	CY General Fund - Public.pdf
	1 income statement
	2 balance sheet
	3 rev exp graphs
	Rev Data
	Rev Graph
	Exp Data
	Exp Graph

	4 tax collection
	5 cash flow
	6 Reconciliation signature page
	11 reconciliation summary
	12 reconciliation checks and charges cleared
	13 reconciliation checks and charges outstanding
	14 reconciliation deposits and credits cleared
	15 reconciliation deposits and credits outstanding
	16 reconciliation register
	17 reconciliation adjustment report
	19 capital reserve fund
	20 treasurer's report
	21 trial balance worksheet




